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INCARCERATED VETERANS REHABILITATION
AND READJUSTMENT ACT OF 1989

TUESDAY, APRIL 24, 1980

House oF REPRESENTATIVES,
SuBcoMMITTEE ON COURTS, INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY,
AND THE ADMINISTRATION OF JUSTICE,
COMMITTEE ON THE JUDICIARY,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:05 a.m., in room
2226, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Robert W. Kastenmeier
(chairman of the subcommittee) presiding.

Present: Representatives Robert W. Kastenmeier, Carlos J.
Moorhead, and Howard Coble.

Also present: Elizabeth R. Fine, counsel; Charles G. Geyh, .
counsel; Veronica L. Eligan, clerk; and Joseph V. Wolfe, minority
counsel.

Mr. KasTENMEIER. The committee will ecnme to order.

Mr. MooruEAD. Mr. Chairman.

Mr. KasTeNMEIER. The gentleman from California.

Mr. MoorHEAD. I ask unanimous consent that the subcommittee
permit the meeting today to be covered in whole or in part by tele-
vision broadcast, radio broadcast, and/or still photography, pursu-
ant to rule 5 of the committee rules.

Mr. KastenMeigr. Without objection, that request is agreed to.

OPENING STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN KASTENMEIER

Mr. KasteNMEIER. Today the subcommittee is holding hearings
on H.R. 3453, the Incarcerated Veterans Rehabilitation and Read-
justment Act, introduced by Congressman George Brown, This bill
would improve the availability of benefits and services to veterans
who are in prison or who are on parole.

[The bill; H.R. 3453, follows:]

€Y



101sT CONGRESS :
e M, R. 3453 ,

To improve the availability of veterans’ benefits and services to veterans
incarcerated in Federal penal or correctional institutions, and for other purposes.

- IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

QcroBER 12, 1989

Mr. Brown of California (for himself, Mr. Evans, Mr. JonTz, Mr. BoNIOR, Mr.
LanocasTER, Mr. KENNEDY, Mr. PaLLONE, Mr. FrO8T, Mr. CWENS of New &
York, Ms. Perosi, Mr, FAUNTROY, Mrs. BoxER, Mr. BusTAMANTE, Mr.
pE Lugo, Mr. Hayes of Tllinois, Mr. BrUucE, Mr. RicHARDSON, Ms. LoNg,
Mr. Towns, Mr. BoucHer, Mr. Kovrer, Ms, Kaprur, Mr. WoLrs, Mr.
TorrES, Mr. TRAFICANT, Mr. ACKERMAN, Mr. Hawkins, Mr. GrJDEN-
80N, Mr. ATriNg, Mr. MarTiNgZ, Mr. DELLUMS, and Mr. WEiss) intro-
duced the following bill; which was referred jointly to the Committees on
Veterans' Affairs and the Judiciary

A BILL

To improve the availability of veterans’ benefits and services to
veterans incarcerated in Federal penal or correctional insti-
tutions, and for other purposes.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-
tives of the United States of Americe in Congress assembled,
SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE. :

This Act may be referred to as the ‘“Incarcerated Veter- g

[ > (U R ) -

ans Rehabilitation and Readjustment Act of 1989”. -




1 SEC. 2. FII;IDINGS.

2 The Congress finds that—

3 (1) there are rehabilitation needs unique to inear-
4 cerated veterans which, because of their incarceration,
5 need to be addressed;

6 (2) the Readjustment Counseling Program of the
7 Department of Veterans’ Affairs could be an effective
8 part of efforts to rehabilitate incarcerated veterans;

9

(8) veterans’ benefits that incarcerated veterans

10 are entitled to are not being provided on a consistent
11 basis;

12 (4) the resources provided by the Readjustment
13 Counseling Program could be beneficial to incarcerated
14 veterans if the Program were utilized to assist veterans
15 released from Federal, State, and local penal institu-
16 tions; and

17 (5) incarcerated veterans treated for psychological
18 readjustment problems can be expected to have lower
19 . recidivism rates than such veterans who do not receive
20 such treatment.

21 SEC. 3. PURPOSES,

22 The purposes of this Act are to—

23 (1) ensure that the rehabilitation and readjustment
24 needs of incarcerated veterans that are related to mili-
25 tary service are addressed in a coordinated manner by

OHR 3458 IH
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3
the Department of Veterans’ Affairs and the Federal

Bureau of Prisons;

(2) provide mental heaith care professionals em-
ployed by Federal prisons with the information neces-
gary to diagnose end treat incarcerated veterans with
mental disabilities, pa,fticularly post-traumatic-stress
disorder, stemming from their military service;

(8) integrate the resources available from the Re-
adjustment Counseling Program and veterans employ-
ment programs into the parole and probation programs
of incarcerated veterans who are released from Federal
prisons to promote successful readjustment of such vet-
erans into society;

(4) provide incarcerated veterans with information
relating to veterans’ benefits and services;

(5) assist incarcerated veterans after their release
from TFederal prisons in readjusting to society after
their incarceration;

(6) provide veterans incarcerated in State and

local penal institutions with benefits similar to those

_ provided in this Act by encouraging States and local

governments to adopt, where applicable, the provi'sions
of this Act; and
(7) -ensure that veterans incarcerated in Federal

prisons receive the benefits and services from the

@HR _3453 IH
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Department of Veterans’ Affairs to which they are

entitled.

SEC. 4. DEFINITIONS.

As used in this Act—

(1) the term ‘““Assistant Secretary’”’ means the As-
sistant Secretary of Labor for Veterans’ Employment
and Training;

' (2) the term “Department” means the Depart-
ment of Veterans’ Affairs;

.(8) the term “Federal prison” means & Federal
penal or correctional institution;

(4) the term “incarcerated veteran’’ means an in-
dividual determined to be a veteran under section
101(b) who is incarcerated in a Federal prison;

(5) the term “prisoner” means an individual incar-
cerated in a Federal prison;

(6) the term “Secretary” means the Secretary of
the Department;

(7) the term ‘““vet center’” means a facility as de-
fined in section 612A(@)(1) of title 38, United States
Code; and

(8) the term ‘“‘veteran” has the same meaning
such term has in paragraph (2) of section 101 of title
88, United States Code.

QHR 3458 TH'
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5
TITLE I—INCARCERATED VETERAN
ASSESSMENT AND ASSISTANCE
SEC. 101. DETERMINATION OF VETERAN STATUS OF
PRISONERS.
(a) DUTIES OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.—

(1) In ¢ENERAL.—The Attomey Genersal shall, to
the extent practicable, identify those individuals who
may be veterans among those—

(A) entering Federal prisons after the effec-
tive date of this Act; and

(B) who are incarcerated in Federal prisons
on the effective date of this Act and who are to
remain incarcerated more than 30 days after that
date.

(2) TransmiTTAL OF NAMES.—The Attorney
Gener;a,l shall, with the consent of the prisoner in-
volved, transmit to the Secretary the names and loca-
tions of those prisoners identified as possible veterans
pursuant to paragraph (1).

(3) METHODS OF IDENTIFICATION.—In attempt-

_ing to identify those prisoners who may be veterans,
the Atterney General shall rely only on the records in
the possession of the Attorney General, interviews
with prisoners, or both.

(b) DUTIES OF SECRETARY.—

oHR 3458 TH
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(1) DETERMINATION OF VETERAN STATUS.—
The Secretary shall contact those prisoners whose
names were transmitted pursuant to subsection (a)(2)
within 80 days after the receipt of their names. The
Secretary shall inform each prisoner of their sbility to
have their veteran status determined. Those prisoners
requesting such determinastion shall be supplied with
the material needed by the Secretary to make the de-
termination.

(2) INFORMATION RELATING TO VETERANS' BEN-
EFITS.-—As soon as practicable after determining the
veteran status of each prisoner requesting such deter-
mination, the Secretary shall—

(A) inform the prisoners of the determination
of their veteran status; _

(B) inform those prisoners wl;o determined to
be veterans of their rights and responsibilities
with regard to veterans’ benefits and services and
provide them with the information deseribed in
section 102; and

(C) if the incarcerated veteran so desires,
provide the information described in section 102
to those family members designated by the incar-

cerated veteran.

MR 34581




7
SEC. 102. INFORMATION REGARDING VETERANS’ BENEFITS.

The information referred to in sections 101(b)(2) (B) and *
(C) shall include—

(1) the effect of the inearcerated status of the vet-

1

2

3

4

5 eran on the receipt of veterans’ benefits and services;
6 (2) the ability of dependents of the incarcerated
7 veteran to receive benefits available to dependents of
8 veterans during the period of incarceration of the
9

veteran;

10 (3) the ability to have debt collection actions pur-
11 sued by the Department against the veteran suspended
12 during the time period provided by seetion 103;

13 (4) the availability of counseling services within

14 the Federal prison, whether provided by the Depart-

15 ment or the Bureau of Prisons;

16 (5) the potential effect on parcle considerations of

17 the participation by the veteran in counseling activities;

18 (6) the reasons for any reduction in, or termina-

19 tion of, veterans” benefits resulting from the incarcerat-

20 vd status of the veteran;

21 (7) the ability of the veteran to seek a correction

22 of the military records or & review of the discharge or *
23 dismissal from military service of the veteran;

24 (8) services from public and private organizations ’
25 available to the veteran while incarcerated; e

Q@HR 3453 lf{‘
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(9) the ability of the veteran and dependents of
the veteran to appeal the decisions of the Secretary af-
fecting the provision of veterans’ benefits and services;
and

(10) other information the Secretary considers
appropriate.

SEC. 103. SUSPENSION OF DEBT COLLECTION.

(2) FEDERAL InMATES.—Within 30 days after the Sec-
retary confirms, pursuant to section 101(b), that a prisoner is
a veteran, the Secretary shall suspend debt collection activi-
ties of the Department against the incarcerated veteran, and
the obligation of the veteran to pay for debts owed to the
Department, for the duration of his or her incarceration and
for a period not to exceed 6 months following his or her re-
lease from a Eederal prison.

() StaTe AND Locar InMATES.—The Secretary shall
suspend debt collection activities of the Department against
any veteran the Secretary knows is incarcerated in a State or
local penal institution, and the obligation of that veteran to
pay for debts owed to the Department, for the duration of his
or her incarceration and for a period not to exceed 6 months

following his or her release from such an institution.

SHR 8453 TH
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TITLE II—INCARCERATED VETERAN

REHABILITATION COUNSELING

SEC. 201. DUTIES OF THE SECRETARY.

The Secretary, in consultation with the Attorney Gen-

eral, shall—

(1) provide readjustment counseling services to
those incarcerated veterans suffering from mental and
psychological disorders stemming from their military
service;

(2) take measures to ensure that incarcerated vet-
erans have the same ability of being adjudicated as
having service-connected disabilities as nonincarcerated
veterans,

(8) designate an employee in each of the regional
offices of the Department to act as a liaison between
each Federal prison and the Department to coofdinate
the provision of veterans’ services and benefits for in-
ca,rceratgd veterans;

(4) review the physical examinations-forwarded by
the Attorney Gteneral pursuant to paragraph (1)(A) )
of section 202 to determine whether the incarcerated
veteran is eligible for the benefits provided by the Vet-
erans’ Dioxin and Radiation Exposure Compensation
Standards Act (38 U.S.C. 854 note) or other relevant

Federal laws; and
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10
1 (5) ensure that the employee designated pursuant
2 paragraph (3) provides liaison services between families
3 of incarcerated veterans and Federal prisons.
4 SEC. 202. DUTIES OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.
5 The Attorney Generai shall—
6 (1) with the consent of the incarcerated veteran—
7 (A) for the purpose of determining eligibility
8 for benefits under the Veterans’ Dioxin and Radi-
9 ation Exposure Compensation Standards Act (38
10 U.S.C. 354 note) or other relevant Federal
11 laws—
12 () conduct physical examinations on
13 each incarcerated veteran consistent with the
14 protocol utilized by the Department in con-
15 ducting Agent Orange registry examinations;
16 and .
17 (i) transmit such examinations to the
18 Secretary; and
19 - (B) as soon as a date has been set for the
20 release of the incarcerated veteran from & Federal
21 prison, transmit the name and location of that
22 veteran to the Secretary; and
23 (2) consistent with the security requirements of
24 each Federal prison, encourage and facilitate the orga-
25 nization within Federal prisons of “self-help’ groups

oHR 34530
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and other such programs that may contribute to the re-

habilitation of incarcerated veterans.

TITLE IIT—READJUSTMENT COUNSELING

EDUCATION
SEC. 301. DEVELOPMENT OF TRAINING CURRICULUM.

(2) DeverLoPMENT.—The Secretary shall develop a
training curriculum for use in assisting medical, psychiatric,
psychological, and other relevant professionals employed by
the Bureau of Prisons in acquiring the expertise necessary to
diagnose and treat psychiatric disabilities peculiar to
veterans.

(b) Avarnasinuiry oF CurricunuM.—The curriculum
developed pursuant to subsection (a) may be made available
to individuals, organizations, governmental agencies, and
health facilities interested in the diagnosis and treatment of
psychiatric disabilities peculiar to veterans.

TITLE IV—POST-INCARCERATION
READJUSTMENT SERVICES
SEC. 401. DUTIES OF THE SECRETARY.

(a) Duries oF THE SECRETARY.—Upon receipt of the
names transmitted to the Secretary pursuant to paragraph
(1)(A)(i) of section 202, the Secretary shall inform those vet-
erans of the veterans’ benefits and services available to them

upon release. This information shall include—
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(1) the effect of the release of the incarcerated
veteran on the entitlement of the veteran to veterans’
benefits and services, including those terminated or re-
duced at the time of the incarceration of the veteran;

(2) the availability of readjustment counseling
services under the Readjustment Counseling Program
of the Department, including the location of the vet
center nearest to where the incarcerated veteran in-
tends to reside after release;

(3) the availability of additional readjustment serv-
ices from State, local, and private agencies and organi-
zations in the community in which the incarcerated
veteran intends to reside; and

(4) the availability of veterans programs adminis-
tered by the Department of Labor and the Small Busi-
ness Administration.

SEC. 402. DUTY OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY.

The Assistant Secretary shall designate a disabled vet-
erans’ outreach program specialist in each State where a
Federal prison is located to serve as a liaison between each
Federal prison and the disabled veterans’ outreach program

in that State.

@HR 3453 IH
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1 SEC. 403. DUTIES OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE UNITED STATES
2 PAROLE COMMISSION.
3 The Chairman of the United States Parole Commission,
4 in consultation with the Secretary, shall—
5 @ integrate, fo the extent practicable, the serv-
6 ices available from the Readjustment Counseling Pro-
7 gram of the Department into the parole programs of
8 veterans paroled from Federal prisons; and
9 (2) require that parole officers employed by the
10 Commission who have responsibility for paroled veter-
11 ans egteblish and maintain contact with appropriate vet
12 center personnel in order to ensure that paroled veter-
13 ans who are eligible to use vet centers are encouraged
14 to do so.
15 TITLE V—STATE AND LOCAL OUTREACH
16 ASSISTANCE
17 SEC. 501. EXTENSION OF BENEFITS TO VETERANS INCARCER-
18 ATED IN STATE AND LOCAL PENAL INSTITU-
19 TIONS.

20 Within 6 months after the effective date of this Aet, the
21 Becretary and the Assistant Secretary shall implement a pro-
22 gram to extend, to the extent practicable, the benefits of this
23 Act to State and local penal institutions with respeet to vet-

24 eransincarcerated in such institutions.

@HR 3453 IH
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TITLE VI--MISCELLANEOUS
SEC. §01. REPORT.

The Attorney (eneral, the Secretary, the Assistant
Secretary, and the Chairman of the United ‘States Parole
Commission each shall submit to the Congress an annual
report relating to their astivities in implementing this Act.
The first report shall be due on the January 1 occurring after
the effective date of this Act and each January 1 thereafter.
SEC. 602. EFFECTIVE DATE.

This Act shall be effective 3 months after the date of

enactment of the Act.

®HR 3453 TH
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Mr. KasTENMEIER. Very little attention has been focused to date
on veterans in prison. I am very grateful to Congressman Brown
for bringing this issue to the attention of the subcommittee. The
last set of congressional hearings on incarcerated veterans was
held in 1979, I am informed, under the leadership of Senator Cran-
ston in the Senate Committee on Veterans’ Affairs.

We have learned a great deal since 1979 about the long-term ef-
fects that war has on servicemen, and in particular on veterans of
the Vietnam War. There was little understanding a decade ago of
post-traumatic-stress discrder or the adverse effects that many
Vietnam veterans suffer from exposure to agent orange.

We are still working to compensate Vietnam veterans for these
service-related disabilities. In fact, I introduced the Vietnam Veter-
aus Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder Compensation Act, H.R. 794, to
assure that veterans who fought in Vietnam can obtain treatment
for this disorder.

At the same time, however, we have learned very little about
veterans in the criminal justice system. We have limited informa-
tion about how many of our Nation’s prisoners are veterans, when
they served in the military, and what benefits or services they need
and as veterans are entitled to receive.

We know only that 9,447 Federal prison inmates, over 15 percent
of the Federal prison population, are in fact veterans. While there
is no current information about the number of veterans in State
and local prisons, we do know that over 400,000 Vietnam veterans
have been charged with or convicted of a criminal offense, and
about 30,000 Vietnam veterans are currently in prison around the
country.

Veterans, even if incarcerated, are entitled to benefits and serv-
ices for once having served their country. This committee is
charged with the responsibility to oversee the Federal Bureau of
Prisons and to develop Federal correctional policies. In that regard,
we must assure that the health and welfare needs of the prison
population, including incarcerated veterans, are adequately met.

I am very pleased to hold these hearings today to further our ef-
forts to improve services for our American veterans and to further
our correctional policies. I would note that this is the fourth in a
series of hearings this subcommittee has held this Congress on
corrections.

There are many corrections issues of interest to the subcommit-
tee, including the utility of “boot camp” proposals, the use of mili-
tary installations for Federal and State prisons, drug treatment
programs for inmates, potential for increased use of intermediate
sanctions, anc¢ the overriding problem of prison overcrowding. To
thg extent that time permits, we may touch on those issues as well

oday.

At this point I would like to call our first panel of witnesses. I
don’t believe Congressman Brown is here, so we will proceed with
our first panel. I would like to call forward and introduce our panel
of distinguished witnesses from the administration. The first is Mr.
J. Michael Quinlan, the Director of the Federal Bureau of Prisons.

Before we continue the introductions, I would like to yield to my
colleague, Mr. Moorhead.
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Mr. MooruEAD. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It is my understand-
ing that, as we commence our hearing today on H.R. 3453, the In-
carcerated Veterans Rehabilitation and Readjustment Act of 1989,
there are 9,447 veterans incarcerated in the Federal prison system.
This is out of an overall Federal prison population of approximate-
ly 56,000 inmates. Clearly veterans comprise a significant portion
of the Federal inmate population, and in many cases may have
problems and needs that are unique to them as a group.

The thrust of H.R, 3453 is to require the Department of Veter-
ans’ Affairs, the Bureau of Prisons, and the Department of Labor
to establish certain programs for the benefit of incarcerated veter-
ans. As a veteran myself, with several years of active duty and 40
years in the Reserve, I am very concerned about the need for com-
passionate care of our veterans.

While the goal of this legislation is a laudable one, I must admit
that I share, however, the concern that we not go overboard in
mandating new programs in this area at the expense of existing
programs that may be every bit as meritorious. By the same token,
I would not want to do anything that would adversely impact or
curtail the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate Financial Responsibility Pro-
gram, under which the bill encourages inmates to pay court-or-
dered obligations and debts to the Federal Government while
incarcerated.

With veterans we have a special obligation and a special concern.
Naturally we want to do everything we can to provide for them,
especially the medical care that they need when their health is in-
volved later on in life, after they have served their country. Also
we need to provide jobs and so forth for them. But it isn’t always
possible to help every single one who has gotten into trouble with
the law, and many times they have to carry out their obligation to
the country as a result of failing to live by the law. Certainly we
should try to rehabilitate them while they are in the prison system
and try to train them for employment when they get out.

Having said that, Mr. Chairman, I look forward to the testimony
of our witnesses, and especially our distinguished colleague from
California, George Brown, if he shows up. I am going to miss a lot
of today’s hearing because I have an important hearing in another
subcommittee of Judiciary, but I have read the statements and I
will certainly follow the testimony that is given.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. K astENMEIER. I thank my colleague.

Mr. KasteNMEIER. Well, our first witness is the Director of the
Federal Bureau of Prisons, Mr. Quinlan. Naturally, Mr. Quinlan
has testified on numerous occasions before this subcommittee, and
we always welcome him. -

I would also like to greet Benjamin Baer, the Chairman of the
U.S. Parcle Commission. He has a long and distinguished record of
governmental service. We have certainly benefitted from his exper-
tise on criminal justice issues in the past, as we are likely to do so
today as well.

Our third witness on the panel is Mr. David A. Brigham, the Di-
rector of the Veterans' Assistance Service at the Department of
Veterans’ Affairs. We are certainly pleased to have the Depart-
ment of Veterans’ Affairs represented as well.
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Mr. Quinlan, may we proceed with you? We are delighted to
have you back again. You have a brief statement, and you may
proceed any way you wish.

STATEMENT OF J. MICHAEL QUINLAN, DIRECTOR, FEDERAL
BUREAU OF PRISONS, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Mr. QUINLAN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I am de-
lighted to be back and appreciate the opportunity to testify on H.R.
3453. I would like to submit my testimony for the record and just
give you a brief overview of the points I weuld like to cover.

Mr. KastenMmeiER. Without objection, that will be done, and
indeed the printed statements of all witnesses will be accepted for

‘the record. Each may wish to otherwise abbreviate their state-

ments or summarize them, perhaps.

Mr. Quinlan.

Mr. QuiNLAN. Thank you very much.

The Incarcerated Veterans Rehabilitation and Readjustment Act
of 1989 would have the Department of Veterans' Affairs and the
Bureau of Prisons and the Parole Commission work together to
identify and assist veterans in Federal prisons. As you say, almost
15 percent of our population are veterans of military service.

One of the key elements of the legislation would be to inform the
veterans of their rights under veterans’ legislation and to suspend
the collection of debts owed to the Department of Veterans’ Affairs.
In addition, the legislation would have the Bureau of Prisons con-
duct medical examinations to determine eligibility for benefits
under the dioxin, radiation, agent orange exposure programs. Also,
it would encourage the development of self-help groups of incarcer-
ated veterans in institutions. Finally, it would have the Bureau of
Prisons psychiatrists provide treatment for mental disabilities of
veterans.

The bill would also direct the Attorney General to identify veter-
ans in institutions and to transmit that information, if the veteran
agrees, to the Department of Veterans' Affairs. The bill also directs
the Department of Veterans™ Affairs to suspend its own debt collec-
tion authority. However, notwithstanding that provision, we would
propose and anticipate that we could continue to operate our
Inmate Financial Responsibility Program, which assists all inmates
in meeting their financial obligations to repay court-ordered debts
and obligations and debts to the Federal Government.

The final provision of the bill that I would mention is the fact
that the Attorney General is directed to identify to the Secretary of
Veterans’ Affairs the anticipated release location of a veteran
when the release date is known.

As a veteran myself, as Congressman Moorhead mentioned, and
also as a veteran of 22 years of military reserve service, I am very
sympathetic and empathetic to veterans’ issues, and. certainly
would look forward to working with the subcommittee and the De-
partment of Veterans’ Affairs and the Parole Commission on work-
ing out viable programs to assist incarcerated veterans. .

I would like to also take this opportunity, if I could, Mr. Chair-
man, and mention the drug treatment programs that are available
to all inmates in the Federal Bureau of Prisons. We have recently
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identified 47 percent of our male offenders and 30 percent of our
female coffenders who have a moderate to serious substance abuse
history. These substance abuse histories existed prior to incarcer-
ation and, for the most part, because we have a very low positive
urinalysis rate among incarcerated Federal prisoners, we do not
expect that many of these that many of these individuals are able
to keep their addictions active while they are in prison, but their
addictions remain while incarcerated.

Although the Bureau of Prisons has historically provided drug
treatment, we are now implementing new approaches that we
think are very significant. Two of those elements of the new ap-
proaches are comprehensive residential treatment units, and there
are five of these that will be implemented this fiscal year. Each of
the programs will have 100 inmates involved in them, in a 9-month
program which will provide 500 hours of treatment and education.

Then the second element is the three new high-intensity drug
treatment programs that will be located at our prisons in Butner,
NC, Lexington, KY, and Tallahassee, FL, which will require 1 full
year of treatment with state of the art treatment approaches, and
an evaluation component that we will be working on with the Na-
tional Institute of Drug Abuse. The program will be tied into—a
very critical part of it will be a 6-month followup program in the
community after the completion of the l-year residential, state of
the art treatment program.

We are hopeful that this approach, which research has shown is
being offered at the most optimum time in the incarcerated per-
son’s program—that is, during the last year or so prior to release.
It will offer to offenders the chance to become totally helped or sig-
nificantly helped with their addiction problem, so that when they
are released they will not fall victim to the same pressures and fall
into the same habits that they had prior to incarceration.

So we are very excited about the prospects of these two initia-
tives. I appreciate the opportunity to appear, and I would certainly
like to respond to any questions you might have.

Mr. KasTENMEIER. Thank you, Mr. Quinlan.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Quinlan follows:]
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PrEPARED STATEMENT OF J. MICHAEL QUINLAN, DIRECTOR, FEDERAL BUREAU OF
Prisons, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, I appreciate the opportunity to appear before
you to discuss the position of the Federal Bureau of Prisons regarding HL.R. 3453, the
"Incarcerated Veterans Rehabilitation and Readjustment Act of 1989." While consideration of
this bill is primarily a matter for the Department of Veterans Affairs, which is well equipped
for analysis of this legislation's merits on behalf of the Administration, we make these
observations and suggestions insofar as the bilr will affect the Bureau of Prisons.

Under this bill, the Department of Veterans Affairs and the Bureau of Prisons would undertake
to identify veterans incarcerated in the Bureau of Prisons, and assist them in several ways.
These would include informing them of their rights under veterans legislation, suspending
collection of debts owed to the Department of Veterans Affairs, conducting medical
examinations to determine eligibility for benefits under Dioxin, Radiation and Agent Orange
exposure programs, encouraging development of self-help groups of incarcerated veterans, and
training - Bureau of Prisons professionals to diagnose and treat psychiatric disabilities
characteristic of veterans.

The bill also directs the Attorney General to identify veterans incarcerated in Federal prisons
and transmit that information, contingent upon the consent of the veteran, to the Department of
Veterans Affairs, Identification would be limited to information in the records of the Attorney
General and interviews of prisoners. We recominend that all means of identification be
permitted, including a computer match of Social Security numbers for this limited purpose. In
addition, we suggest that the bill be amended to remove the requirement that the veteran
consent to our informing the Department of Veterans Affairs that he or she is incarcerated,
because normally, the fact of incarceration is a public record. Requiring consent in  this
instance would create a unique exception to our normal practice and would create possible
problems in releasing the information concerning inmates with psychiatric problems who may
have reduced capacity to give informed consent.

The Bill directs the Secretary to inform inmale veterans of "the potential effect on parole
considerations of the participation by the veteran in counseling activities”. The Bureau might,
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under these provisions, be requested to provide a psychological or psychiatric evaluation, to be
made available for a parole hearing.

The bill further directs the Department of Veterans Affairs to suspend its own debt collection
activity against an incarcerated veteran. We defer to the Department of Veterans Affairs on
the desirability of suspending its debt collection activity. We also concur with the Department
of Veterans Affairs' determination that incarcerated veterans who can afford to pay should do
so. In any event, we do not read this as limiting the Bureau of Prisons' Inmate Financial
Responsibility Program, under which the Bureau encourages inmates to pay court-ordered
obligations and debts to the Federal government while incarcerated. This program has several
salutary benefits for these inmates, including enabling them to demonstrate an increased level
of responsible behavior that relates to increased trust and privileges, and reducing the financial
burden the inmate will encounter when released. Notwithstanding any provisions of this bill,
we anticipate continuing to operate this program with regard to all inmates, assisting them in
meeting all financial obligations falling within the purview of the program.

Another provision requires the Bureau of Prisons, "consistent with the security requirements of
each Federal prison," to encourage development of self-help groups of veterans, We
appreciate the recognition of security concems contained in this section.

The Attorney General is directed to notify the Secretary of the anticipated release location of a

veteran for whom a release date has been set. This can be done in conjunciion with other
’

notification that currently is done when prisoners are released.

While we are prepared to develop appropriate specialized programs for incarcerated veterans,
we would caution that specific results of treatment in the form of reduced recidivism are hard
to predict, since many factors are involved in post-release success or failure. Therefore, we
believe the proposed finding in Section 2 of the bill is a difficult one o support. It is difficult
to evaluate whether incarcerated veterans who receive psychological treatment for readjustment
problems can be expected to have lower recidivism rates than veterans who do not receive such
treatment.

In addition to my comments on the proposed veterans legislation, I would like to take the
opportunity of this appearance before the Subcommittee to briefly mention another important
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program area now receiving a great deal of attention in the Bureau of Prisons., Because of the
increased incidence of drug offenders in the Bureau (including many such offenders who are
veterans) we are devoting increased resources towards expanding our substance abuse
programs.

Within ihe Bureau presently, 47% of all male offenders and 30% of all female offenders have
a moderate or serious substance abuse history. While the Bureau has historically provided
treatment programs to inmates since the mid-1960's, new approaches are being explored.
Each of the five comprehensive residential treatment units approved for Fiscal Year 1990 will
be capable of enrolling 100 inmates into a 9 month program requiring 500 hours of treatment
and education. The three new high-intensity pilot programs, which will be offered at Federal
institutions in Butner, North Carolina; Lexington, Kentucky; and Tallahassee, Florida, require
a year of nearly full-time treatment using "state-of-the-art” knowledge of effective treatment
approaches, and an evaluation component developed in coordination with the National Institute
on Drug Abuse. We believe this high level of program activity will allow properly motivated
inmates to develop the personal resources necessary to remain drug-free upori release.

As I have expressed many times, I appreciate the support of the Congress in helping us to deal
with the issues that face our Federal -prisons today. I would welcome visits to any of cur
institutions by the Committee and its staff.

That concludes my formal statement, Mr. Chairman., I would be pleased to answer any
questions you or your colleagues may have.




23

Mr. KastenMeIER. I would like to now call on the Chairman of
the Parole Commission, who also has a very brief statement, I
believe.

Mr. BAER. Yes, sir.

Mr. KAsTENMEIER. I am pleased to greet Benjamin Baer, who I
must say has been a wonderful person to work with and we appre-
ciate his own good work.

STATEMENT OF BENJAM:N F. BAER, CHAIRMAN, U.S. PARCLE
COMMISSION .

Mr. Bagr. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am pleased to have this
opportumty to appear before you to discuss the U.S. Parole Com-
mission’s position regard_mg H.R. 3453. You have my very brief
statement.

Just to summarlze, first of all, the Palole Commission is support-
ive of programs that will assist veterans in both prison adjustment
and during any period of supervision in the community.

One section of the bill directs the Secretary to inform inmate vet-
erans of the potential effect on parole consideration, given the par-
ticipation by the veteran in counseling activities. Our regulations
indicate that they may qualify for earlier release under what we
call a superior program achievement, a program that is based on
program participation in areas such as vocational, educational, in-
dustrial, and counseling programs that exist in the Bureau of Pris-
ons. This obviously would include courseling programs specifically
for veterans.

In cases where the Parole Commission is concerned with a veter-
an’s ability to live at liberty in the community without violating
the law or jeopardizing the public safety, there may be a request
for psychological or psychiatric evaluations that might be request-
ed before a parole hearing so that a responsible determination can
be made. A recommendation to participate in a counseling program
for veterans might result from such an evaluation.

Another section directs the Attorney General to notify the Secre-
tary of the anticipated release location, and the Parole Commission
can fulfill this responsibility because the Commission has final au-
thority as to the parolee’s place of residence.

Also, another section directs the Parole Commission, in consulta-
tion with the Department of Veterans’ Affairs, to integrate, to the
extent practicable, the services available from the Readjustment
Counseling Program of the Department of Veterans’ Affairs for re-
leased veterans. The Commission would be pleased to work with
the Department of Veterans’ Affairs to help paroled veterans take
advantage of the readjustment counseling program.

The Commission has a provision where cases in need of treat-
ment or who may be resistant to treatment can be ordered to par-
ticipate in an appropriate aftercare program. This could be utilized
with veterans pursuant to 28 CFR 2.40 of the Commission’s
regulations.

Also, another section, 403[2], directs the parole officers to ensure
that eligible veterans use veterans centers and to encourage them
to do s0. We recommend that this language be modified to change
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the words “parole officers” to ‘“U.S. probation ‘officers,” and the
words “employed by” be changed to “who act as agents of.”

The reason for this is that U.S. probation officers act as our
agents in supervising parole, special parole, and mandatory relea-
sees. We would encourage probation officers to utilize the resources
offered by the Veterans’ Administration to allow the Probation Di-
vision to effectively supervise veterans over whom we have parole
jurisdiction.

In summary, the Parole Commission supports programs and re-
sources that allow for the responsible supervision of persons under
our authority. We are constantly striving to improve the quality of
resources available and to consider all possible alternatives to ef-
fectively manage releasees with our limited resources. But I should
say that we cannot suggest that these additional services will meas-
urably affect recidivism rates, even though they may well promote
rehabilitation for individual offenders.

That completes my testimony, Mr. Chairman. I will be happy to
respond to questions.

Mr. KAsTENMEIER. Thank you, Mr. Commissioner.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Baer follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF BENJAMIN F. BAER, CHAIRMAN, U.S. PAROLE COoMMISSION
Mr. Chairman, Committee Members, I am pleased to have this
opportunity to appear before you to discuss the U.S. Parole

Commission's position regarding H.R. 3453.

I INTRODUCTION

This testimony addresses the Parole Commission's proposed role
and responsibilities under H.R. 3453. The Parole Commission is
supportive of programs that will assist veterans in both prison

adjustment and during any period of supervision in the community.

II

Section 102(5) directs the Secretary to inform inmate veterans
of "the potential effect on parole consideration of the
participation by the veteran in counseling activities".

Pursuant to the Commission's Regulations found at 28 CFR §2.60,
some cases may qualify for earlier release under Superior Program
Achievement based on program participation ;n areas such as
educational, vocational, industry or counseling programs. This
would include counseling programs specifically for veterans.

In cases where the Parole Commission is concerned with a
veteran's ability to live at liberty in the community without

jeopardizing public safety, requests for psychological or
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psychiatric evaluations can be requested for a parole hearing so
that a responsible determination can be made. A recommendation to
participate in a counseling program for veterans might result from
such an evaluation.

Section 302(1l)(B) directs the Attorney General to notify the
Secrevary of the anticipated release location. The Parole
Commission can fulfill this responsibility because the Commission
has final authority to determine parolees place of residence.

Section 403{1) directs the Parole Commission, in consultation
with the Department of Veterans' Affairs, to integrate, to the
extent praticable, the services available from the Readjustment
Counseling Program of the Department of Veterans' Affairs into
parole programs for released veterans. The Parole Commission would
be pleased to work with the Department of Veterans' Affairs to help
paroled veterans take advantage of the Readjustment Counseling
Program. The Parole Commission has a provision, where cases in need
of treatment, {and who may be resistant to treatment) can be ordered
to participate in appropriate aftercare programs. This could be
utilized with veterans pursuant to 28 CFR §2.40(a)&{b) of the
Commission's Reguiations.

Section 403(2) directs parole officers to ensure that eligible
veterans use veteran centers, and to encourage them to do so. We
recommend that this language be modified to change "parole officers"
to "U0.8. Probation Officers" and "employed by" to "who act as agents
of". By statute, the U.S. Probation Qfficers act asg our agents in
sqpe:vising parole, special parole and mandatory releasees (see
U.8.C. §3655). We would encourage probation officers to utilize the

resources offered by the Veterans Administration to allow the




Probation Division to effectively supervise veterans oveér whom we

have parole jurisdiction.

III SUMMARY

The Parole Commission supports programs and resources that
allow for the responsible supervision of persons under our
authority. We are constantly striving to improve the quality of
resources available and to consider all possible alternatives to
effectively manage releasees with our limited resources. However,
we cannot suggest’that these additional services will measurably
affect recidvision rates, even though they may well promote
rehabilitation for individual offenders.

Mr. Chairman this completes my formal testimony. I will be

happy to respond to any questions.
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Mr. KASTENMEIER. Before Mr. Brigham testifies, I think it might
be useful, since we have the author of the bill present, for Con-
gressman Brown to give his testimony, if Mr. Brigham does not
mind. Perhaps Congressman Brown could pull up a chair right
there with our panel of witnesses, as there is plenty of room.

I think for the purpose of the record it would make more sense
to have Congressman Brown testify at this point. We are delighted
to have our colleague from California, the author of the measure,
with us, and we would be glad to hear from you, George.

STATEMENT OF HON. GEORGE E. BROWN, JR., A
REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM CALIFORNIA

Mr. BrRowN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, and may 1
apologize for being late? It is the rather unfortunate dilemma of
most Congressriten, it seems, and may I apologize to the panel
members here for interrupting the smooth flow of their presenta-
tion by coming in?

I would like to make a statement, and I have the prepared text
which has been submitted to the committee. Let me just add to
that statement, which you already have, a brief statement which I
hope will serve to explain my deep concern about this issue, as
much as anything else.

I spent 8 years on the Veterans’ Affairs Committee in the House
during the 196('s, during the Vietnam War period. I devoted a
great deal of my congressional activities to trying to help those vet-
erans returning from Vietnam and all veterans to make the kinds
of adjustments which are needed.

Of course we all recognize that the experience of the Vietnam
War was probably the most traumatic experience that any of our
large number of veterans in this country have been exposed to, and
partly because of the failure of the population as a whole to sup-
port that war with any degree of enthusiasm, as they have in most
cases with other wars.

In addition to my deep concern for veterans in general and my
familiarity with their problems gleaned through these 8 years on
the Veterans’ Committee and other experiences, I have a similar
concern about the problems of those people who are incarcerated.
Again, 1 try not to be too much of a bleeding heart on this matter.
I really feel very strongly that society is well served when it does
the best job of rehabilitating those people whe are incarcerated for
any reason.

When you combine the two factors, the factor of service in the
military of this country and, for many, service during a very un-
popular war, with the problems that go with the removal from soci-
ety for crimes of one sort or another, you have a very vulnerable
population, a population which in my opinion deserves not to be
forgotten.

I am not really asking in this legislation that any of the subject
veterans receive something that they are not entitled to. What I
merely am seeking by this legislation is to facilitate their achieving
what they have marned and what the American people and the
American Government have provided for in the kinds of services
that we render to ali veterans.
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I am particularly concerned about the Vietnam veteran popula-
tion in prison because I think there is every reason to think that at
least a part of the causes that led them into prison may have been
service connected, and by that of course I am referring here to the
trauma, the stress which has been recognized almost as an entity,
the post-traumatic-stress syndrome which has been identified as
the root of the problems of many Vietnam veterans.

If that is the case, I think that we have indeed a special obliga-
tion to make sure that these veterans receive that which they are
entitled to as vetiirans. If it should turn out that they are suffering
from some form of post-Vietnam War stress, and that stress may
have been induced by not only the normal conditions of service but
perhaps by such things as exposure to agent orange or something
of that sort, it seems to me that we are really doing a great disserv-
ice not to make available to these veterans the full range of serv-
ices, the full range of physical examinations, the full consideration
of whether or not they may be entitled to some special treatment
as a result of both the stress and perhaps the exposure to agent
orange.

This legislation is a beginning effort to achieve that. Now I rec-
ognize that it is likely to be imperfect in the form that it is pre-
sented to you. I hope that the gentlemen here at the table, who
represent the agencies that are responsible for making the system
work, can help to make this bill into a form which wiil do the job
that I think that the people of this country, and I hope the Con-
gress, will want to see done.

Give these servicemen, who have suffered in unusual situations,
different at least to some degree from what other servicemen have
suffered, and whose experience may be at least a part of the cause
of their being incarcerated, give them the full range of opportunity
to receive the benefits that they are entitled to, the benefits that
nonincarcerated veterans receive. I make that plea to you, Mr.
Chairman, in the hope that you will see fit to look favorably upon
this legislation and, with whatever necessary changes that wouid
make it function best, hopefully get it enacted into law.

I sense that you probably share some of my concerns. I know the
members of the committee well enough to know that they are not
insensitive to this problem, and I hope we can do something about
it.

Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

M:. KasteNMEeIER. Well, thank you for that presentation describ-
ing the purpose of your bill, and indeed your testimony in its print-
ed form will be made part of the record.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Brown follows:]

35-314 0 -~ 80 - 2
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Testimony of .
Congressman George E. Brawn, Jr.
before the House Judiciary )
Subcommittee on Courts, Intellectual Property, and the
Administration of Justice

April 24, 1990

Mr. Chairman, I commend you for holding this hearing today.
I greatly appreciate the opportunity to appear before this
subcommittee to express to you my reasons for introducing H.R.
3453, the Incarcerated Veterans Rehabilitation and Readjustment
Act.

Millions of American men and women have served their country
through military service. Our nation has rightfully taken on the
responsibility for providing benefits to those military veterans
and their families, including benefits to help veterans overcome
any debilitating effects from their military service. Ensuring
that our nation offers veterans benefits to all former military
pgrsonnel and families who are eligible is what this bill is
about,

T want to emphasize that this bill is not about excusing
incarcerated veterans for their crimes. This bill does nothing
to exonerate incarcerated veterans. But the bill does attempt to
ensure that all veterans and their families are treated equally
in terms of the benefits and rights that they have earned through
their military service.

Some of the important services which the Department of
Veterans Affalrs is chargfed with providing include mediecal
evaluations to determine if a veteran has a service-connected
disability. The DVA is also charged with providing educational
and financial support to disabled veterans and their families.

In recent years, our nation has become more aware of the
need to provide an additional service to many veterans. A recent
study commissioned by the Department of Veterans Affairs found
that approximately 15 percent of Vietnam veterans currently
suffer from some range of symptoms associated with post-traumatic
stress disorder, or PTSD for short. Not only does a veteran amd
his or her family suffer from the effects of PTSD but so does the
community at large, in terms of losing the full productive
potential of that veteran.

Fortunately, the treatment for post-traumatic stress used by
the DVA through its 196 nationwide vet centers has been quite
successful, The lives of thousands of veterans and their
families have been improved thanks to the many success stories
that vet centers have produced.
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Unfortunately, most veterans who are in prison are
effectively prevented from receiving or even knowing about many
of their rightfully due veterans services, including treatment
for post-traumatic stress., For example, if an incarcerated
veteran needs to have a medical examination to determine his or
her exposure to Agent Orange in order to get on the DVA's Agent
Orange registry, he or she currently must pay for guards and
transportation to a facility where such an examination can be
made., Given that most prisoners receive about one dollar a day
in wages, the average incarcerated veteran simply cannot afford
such ‘a trip. Instead, the relatively simple Agent Orange tests
could be performed by pr;son medical personnel on site if they
were provided with specifically prescribed examination criteria
by the DVA.

In terms of post-traumatic stress counseling, currently,
some vet center counselors take the initiative and make visits to
prisons to help veterans there, but that is the exception rather
than the rule. Also, prison officials are inconsistent in the
extent to which they allow incarcerated veterans to organize and
form the self-help groups that play an integral part in some of
the post-traumatic recovery process.

The far reaching success of the vet centers is part of the
simple beauty of H.R. 3453. That is, a successful program
already exists through which veterans can be helped to overcome
PTSD. By simply extending that program into the incarcerated
veterans' population, we can fulfill our responsibility to
provide equal service to all of our nation's veterans and we
can enable incarcerated veterans to readjust from their military
service and learn to %ct Besponsibly in eivilian 1life.

[

1

H.R. 3453 wou require the DVA to give information to all
veterans in federal prisons regarding their rights to veterans
benefits and the ¢xtent to which their imprisonment will affect
their benefits. here are approximately 9,000 veterans in
federal prisons. | Providing some kind of standardized written
information to 872890 people would seem to be a minor project; %o
not do so implies that it is acceptable and even preferable to
keep some veterans uninformed about their benefits and rights.

H.R. 3453 would also mandate that DVA refrain from debt
collection actions against veterans while they are incarcerated
and until 6 months after they are released. The reason for this
is that while a veteran is in prison, the majority of disability
benefits can be reapportioned to his or her family. This cnables
a family that may have relied on those benefits for basie
expenses to continue to meet those expenses while the veteran is
in prison and incapable of providing financial support to the
family. However, debt collection activities by the DVA often
have driven an incarcerated veteran's family to insolvency and
seriously harmed a veteran's chances for readjustment after
leaving prison. ‘Allowing DVA debt collection to recommence six
months after a veteran leaves prison enables a veteran to have a
reasonable chance of getting a job and becoming financially
resettled before DVA benefits are reduced to make debt payments,
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It is possible that DVA will oppose this legislation because
they believe its implementation would require resources and staff
time that would detract from their other missions. It is not my
intention nor desire that other services to veterans or their
families suffer in any way because of this legislation. I have
always supported giving Veterans Affairs the full resources
necessary to carry out its mission and I will continue to do so
in the future. What is necessary though is for the Department of
Veterans Affairs to accept as an integral part of its mission,
the outreach and provision of veterans services to all
veterans,. including veterans in prison.

I would like to extend to the Department of Veterans
Affairs, and to the Justice Department, my willingness to work
with them to shape legislation that will make a significant step
toward ensuring that incarcerated veterans are provided with the
veterans services to which they are entitled. However, for a
cooperative effort to succeed it is important that the Department
of Veterans Affairs come forward not with reasons why they cannot
assist inearcerated veterans but with ideas on what they can do
to help.

I believe that with an open mind, some c¢reativity, but most
of all, with a commitment to be fair, we can work together to
make sure that veterans benefits bgcome accessible to all
veterans,

Thank you very much Mr. Chairman and Subcommittee Members.

kU
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Mr. KasTENMEIER. As I indicated at the outset, T am sensitive to
the problem this legislation seeks to address. I am the House spon-
sor of a piece of legislation directed specifically at Vietnam veter-
ans who suffer from post-traumatic-stress disorder, and so I recog-
nize that there is such a problem. v

As I understand it, you are not suggesting that the penalties for
committing a crime in any way be differentially applied to
veterans?

Mr. Brown. In no way whatscever, Mr. Chairman. That is nct
the kind of thing which I think is helpful, even in terms of reha-
bilitation. I have a very strong belief that people have to be respon-
sible for their acts. If they commit a crime, they have to be respon-
sible for it. Even if that crime is committed under the most noble
of motives, they still have to suffer the consequences.

Mr. KasTENMEIER. Do we know that veterans, particularly Viet-
nam veferans, are not receiving benefits or services either while on
parole or while incarcerated? To what extent do we know that the
bill is necessary, that they are not receiving benefits and services
to which they are otherwise entitled?

Mr. Brown. That seems to be the consensus of all of those that I
have spoken to on this issue. As you know, some of the most suc-
cessful programs involving veterans, and particularly veterans of
Vietnam, have been systems of group counseling and informal
interaction, which have enabled them to live through or to go
through the kinds of problems they have and to work them out in
a supportive environment.

The consensus seems to be that that environment is not available
and does not exist within the prison system, although I am sure
that a lot of prison administrators would like to see that kind of
thing happen, because in general that is the approach that you
want most prisoners to take in terms of modifying their antisocial
behavior. I can’t speak to all of the details because I haven’t at-
tempted to make, for example, surveys of the situation, but I have
talked to an awful lot of Vietnam veterans and I have talked to
many who are in prison, and that seems to be the reaction that 1
am getting.

Mr. KasTeENMEIER. Let me say that I am told that your proposed
legislation addresses in large part the findings of the Department
of Veterans' Affairs Advisory Committee on Incarcerated Veterans.
Is that correct?

Mr. Brown. That is correct.

Mr. KasteNnMmeigr. If that is correct, then, why has the Depart-
ment of Veterans’ Affairs been reluctant to take any initiative in
response to this Advisery Committee recommendation? Perhaps I
should ask them, but I will also ask you.

Mr. Brown. Well, I think the Department of Veterans’ Affairs is
well aware of the problem. I think that they would like to develop
a program which would reach this population, but that they
haven’t done so and they haven’t felt that it has a high priority
with the Congress. They don’t see any direction for them to give it
a high priority. ;

Obviously there is also a feeling that they are not gifted with un-
limited funds and that they have to use those funds on things that
may be perhaps more visible than, we will say, the prison popula-
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tion. That is very understandable, and yet to my mind this is re-
grettable, because the needs of those who are not so visible are just
as urgent, in many cases more urgent.

I can’t see the Department objecting. I think they need guidance
and support, though.

Mr. KasTENMEIER. Let me say there may be a political difficulty
with the proposition. You will recall, as I do, the large omnibus
drug bill that we passed in late 1988. If I am not mistaken, there
was a substantial struggle over whether or not benefits, veterans’
})eneﬁts, would accrue to veterans who were convicted of a drug of-

ense.

Mr. BrRown. Yes.

Mr. KasteNmEIER. I think you remember that struggle, and I
think it was satisfactorily resolved, but nonetheless it was a clear,
-close contest that almout carried the day in the Congress, I regret
to say.

Mr. BrRowN. Yes, and if I may categorize that situation as one in
which Members of Congress tend to react with some degree of—you
might almost call it hysteria, that is, a sense that they have to do
something to curb the drug menace, and if withdrawing benefits
from somebody who is convicted of a drug offense will help, they
want to do that. If cutting off their ears would do it, they Would
probably want to do that.

But the fact is, any sophisticated analysis of this problem will
show that, as far as Vietnam veterans are concerned, at least a
good share of those people got their first indoctrination into the
drug culture as a result of their service. It seems anomalous that
we would seek to deprive them of the ability to rehabilitate them-
selves, when to some degree at least society bears the responsibility
for their condition.

Mr. KastewMriEr. Well, I have one last question of my col-
league—and you may not have a specific answer, but a ball park
answer would be equally acceptable. That is, what sort of costs are
we looking at here? I ask that because as soon as the committee
takes this up seriously, we are going to be asked that question, and
we are interested to know whether you have any sort of feel for
what sort of budgetary costs would be necessary to implement the
legislation.

"Mr. Brown. Well, you have to start with determining how many
veterans would be involved in the population we are talking about.
I understand, and I don’t have an exact figure, but it may be
10,000, it may be 20,000. I am not sure. I think you have to assume
that the cost is going to be a few thousand dollars per veteran.

Mr. KasTENMEIER. In the Federal system I think we are starting
with 9,000. What was the figure? We started out by noting that
there are 9,447.

Mr, BrowN., Well, let me give you a best guess that the cost of
treating those, providing the services to those veterans would prob-
ably run from $10 million to $50 million a year. That is a broad
range, but considering the number of people involved and so forth,
I think it is something on that order. I might say that if this pro-
gram could lead to successful rehabilitation and avoid even a year
of incarceration, it would be well worth it.
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Mr. KasTENMEIER. But, you couldn’t really give us a ballpark
figure for costs here?

Mr. Brown. I would have to know what the Veterans’ Adminis-
tration would say would be the cost of providing that service per
individual.

Mr. KasTENMEIER. Yes. We wﬂI ask them.

Mr. BRown. Multiply it by thé 9,000-plus individuals.

Mr. KASTENMEIER. I take it my colleague doesn’t have any
questions?

Mr. CoBLE. No questlons/ I had another meeting, Mr. Chairman.
Sorry I am late,

Mr. KASTENMEIER. So/we thank you, and I would like to personal-
ly commend you, Congressman Brown, for raising this issue. It is,
as you say, an issuewhich doesn’t have high visibility and it would
be very easy to just forget about, even though I think everybody
would conscientiously say yes, there is a problem.

Mr. Brown, Well, let me again apologize for being late and caus-
ing the 1nterrupt1on, and particularly to the other members of the
panel, who'I think can shed considerably more light on the actual
problem and the solution than I can as a well-intentioned Congress-
man. I can provide a little impetus to focus congressional attention
on it, which is what I hope to do, and then I am going te leave it
up to them to provide the answers.

Mr. KasteNMEIER. Thank you. ,

Mr. Kastenmeier. Now I would like to turn to Mr. David
Brigham, who is Director of the Veterans' Assistance Service of the
Department of Veterans’ Affairs.

Mr. Brigham, you have been very kind to wait your turn, so to
speak, and we are delighted to have you here, sir.

STATEMENT OF DAVID A. BRIGHAM, DIRECTOR, VETERANS’
ASSISTANCE SERVICE, DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS' AFFAIRS,
ACCOMPANIED BY DR. ARTHUR BLANK, DIRECTOR,
READJUSTMENT COUNSELING SERVICE

Mr. Briguam. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for the opportunity to
present brief oral testimony today on behalf of the Department of
Veterans’ Affairs. I am pleased to be accompanied, on my left, by
Dr. Arthur Blank, who is Director of the VA’s Readjustment Coun-
seling Service. Dr. Blank’s Service is the program authority for our
nationwide network of vet centers, delivering Readjustment Coun-
seling Program services.

Together, Dr. Blank and I have the opportunity to manage the
two VA programs which are most involved in public contact and
public service outreach. The legislative proposal which is the sub-
ject of this hearing, H.R. 3453, would impact directly on our pro-
gram efforts.

We find it difficult to express opposition to any proposal which
speaks to the possible readjustment and benefits delivery needs of
veterans. We certainly do not want to leave the impression that we
are insensitive to the concerns and needs of the incarcerated.
Rather, we acknowledge the great problem the incarcerated may
haive and the special challenges which await them upon their
release.
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Our problems with H.R. 3458 are, more than anything, an ex-
pression of the limited resources in terms of people, funds, and
time available to both the Veterans’ Services Program and the Re-
adjustment Counseling Program. Resource availability, rather than
social conscience, is the great determiner of what we can and
cannot do.

Almost 2 years ago I realized that our Veterans’ Services out-
reach efforts had declined steadily over a 5-year period. Outreach
demand exceeded our ability to fulfill that demand. At that point
we decided, for the first time, to set priorities among our numerous
outreach constituencies. We decided to put primary emphasis on
homeless veterans, on military personnel separating from active
duty, and on older veterans and their families,

We chose those groups as priorities because they were either
most at risk or most in need of information and claims assistance.
That emphasis does not mean that we exclude other groups, includ-
ing incarcerated veterans, from service. It is, however, a reflection
of working difficulties in balancing in-office versus outreach work
and in attempting to provide beneficial and comprehensive services
to various individuals and groups.

Benefits programs to veterans who are incarcerated are limited
by law, as well as by the circumstance of incarceration. Notwith-
standing that fact, we have in past years conducted some aggres-
siva2 outreach to prison facilities, and during recent years Readjust-
ment Counseling staff have made efforts to establish liaison contact
with prisons in their jurisdiction and to provide some readjustment
counseling services to veterans in prerelease status.

We anticipate efforts will continue on our part to do what we
can. Certainly a level of improved information exchange between
our Department and the Bureau of Prisons, as well as State and
local authorities, can be achieved. Likewise, it is appropriate that
we increase efforts and information dissemination on VA benefits
and services to incarcerated veterans in anticipation of their
return to society.

While we may express difficulty or disagreement with some of
the specific provisions of the proposed legislation, we do not argue .
the merits of helping veterans as they seek to take a productive
place in the mainstream of American life.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and I will be pleased to respond,
along with Dr. Blank, to any questions you may have.

Mr. KasteEnMEIER. Thank you very much for that brief state-
ment, and also for the slightly longer statement you submitted for
the record. :

[The prepared statement of Mr. Brigham follows:]
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PrEPARED STATEMENT 0OF DAVID A. BriGHAM, DIRECTOR, VETERANS’ ASSISTANCE
SERVICE, DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS' AFFAIRS

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee:

Thank you for offering VA the opportunity to testify this

morning on H.R. 3453.

This measure would direct VA, the Justice Department, and the
Labor Department to take certain steps to provide services to
veterans incarcerated in Federal, State, and local prisons and to
assist prison officials at those institutions. We recognize the
concern of this measure's sponsoars that the needs of incarcerated
veterans are not being met in our nation’s prisons, and we. are
sympathetic to the goals of this legislation. As a Department
which would be tasked with implementing many of the bill's
provisions, however, we would be remiss if we simply expressed
agreement with its principles. We must consider the bill's
impact on ongoing VA programs and its implications in relation to

our other statutory obligations.

Overall, H.R. 3453 would require VA to revise the staffing
and funding of several major programs to attempt to assist
incarcerated veterans, For example,” the bill calls for VA to
conduct extensive outreach efforts, suspend debt collection
activities, &establish new readjustment counseling programs,
create staff positions at all regional offices to serve
as benefits coordinators, and review . records of physical
examinations to ‘attempt to determine individuals' eligibility

for any benefits,
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In short, the bill would require VA to establish a
many-faceted new program. VA is not indifferent to the concerns
of the incarcerated veteran. We recognize clearly that more
resources could be diverted to attempt to work with the Bureau of
Prisons or otherwise assist incarcerated veterans, But mandating
that VA establish special programs would inevitably conflict with
both existing statutory priorities and VA's ongoing efforts to
assist other veterans who enjoy no specific mandate, including
the homeless, the elderly, the ~chronic mentally ill, native
American veterans, and others residing in rural areas remote from
VA medical centers. All have a claim to VA assistance. We
cannot support enactment of legislation which would have the
effect of requiring VA  to take resources from one group of

veterans to augment services to incarcerated veterans,

By way of illustration, section 201(1) would require VA to
provide readjustment counseling services to veterans who are
incarcerated, By -~ law, the ©purpose of VA's readjustment
counseling program is to assist veterans in readjusting to
civilian 1life, and we simply do not have authority to provide
readjustment counseling services to incarcerated veterans until
their release or entry into a pre-release prodgram. We believe,
moreover, that the prisons should be responsible for ensuring

that all prisoners including veterans receive needed services.
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For VA to provide these services would decrease the resources

currently available to provide services to other veterans.

It is not clear, moreover, that enactment of this bill would
necessarily yield the benefits sought by its sponsors. For
example, section 201(4) of the bill would require VA to review
all physical examinations of incarcerated veterans forwarded to
VA by the Justice Department to determine whether these veterans
are eligible for VA benefits and inform them of the benefits
and services available to them. Imposing such & requirement,
however, will not yield the result apparently sought by this
provision. A veteran's physical examination alone does - not
provide sufficient information for VA to determine a veteran‘s
service-connected status or eligibility for other benefits., We
are, of course, not opposed to acceptin§ this information, but
requiring VA to review it would not in and of itself eliminate

difficulties in delivering benefits to incarcerated veterans.

Overall, these considerations compel us to recommend against
the enactment of this measur¢, and to urge that VA be left with

the discretion to meet the needs of its broad constituency in the
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most effective, efficient way possible. We do believe, however,
that more can be done by way of sharing our expertise in the
treatment of post-traumatic stress disorder with the Bureau
of Prisons. This is not an area requiring the enactment of
legislation. We have provided such training in the pasé and
believe this is an area in which further efforts can prove
fruitful. Similarly, dgreater coordination among Federal pro-
grams could prove helpful in channeling released veterans to

VA programs such as our Readjustment Counseling Service.

Mr., Chairman, this completes my formal testimony. My

colleagﬁes and I would be pleased to respond to any questions.
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Mr. KasTENMEIER. You mentioned “limited by law.” You used
that term. Does your legal mandate require that you distinguish
between veterans in prison and nonincarcerated velerans when
providing benefits and services?

Mr. BricHAM. It does, in relation to several of the major benefits
programs. Specifically, since 1980 we have been charged by law,
Mr. Chairman, with identifying veterans who are in receipt of com-
pensation, service connected disability compensation, who happen
to be incarcerated on a felony conviction, and to make certain ad-
justments to their compensation benefits as a result of that.

Essentially, for veterans receiving disability compensation, their
benefits are reduced. If they receive at the 20-percent or higher
service connected level, their benefits are reduced to the 10-percent
payment rate. If they are at 10 percent, their compensation bene-
fits are reduced to one-half of the 10-percent rate.

For a number of years we have been charged with terminating
benefits for nonservice connected disability pension after the 6lst
day of incarceration. In addition, since 1980, education benefits,
payment of education benefits under the GI bill, have been restrici-
ed to tuition and fees reimbursement only.

So those three major benefits programs are affected legislatively
in terms of delivery. Beyond that, we are not charged with a legal
mandate to distinguish an incarcerated veteran versus a nonincar-
cerated veteran.

Mr. KasreNnmEeIER. With respect to those veterans who may be
either on probation or parole, but not actually incarcerated, or in
some other facility in which there is a degree of freedom, let’s say
a halfway house, how do you treat those veterans? Are they also
treated differentially in some way?

Mr. Bricaam. Generally speaking, no. In terms of prerelease,
however, before their actual parole or effective release, the benefits
restrictions that I referred to continue to apply. However, in terms
of their ability to interact with our programs and their ability to
receive direct services in terms of counseling, information dissemi-
nation, and readjustment counseling services, there would be no
limitation on that except any that may be imposed by the condi-
tions of their particular capacity.

Mr. KasteNMEIER. I understand that in large measure, at least,
and this is confirmed by Congressman Brown, that the findings of
the former Veterans’ Advisory Committee on Incarcerated Veter-
ans are incorporated in his bill. I guess he used the committee’s
findings as a model to derive much of what is in his bill. Is that
true, as far as you can tell?

Mr. BricaaMm. Yes, and I wili also ask Dr. Blank to reply, if you
don’t mind,

Mr. KasTENMEIER. Yes, of course.

Mr. BricaaM. That is actually a product of our Advisory Com-
mittee on Readjustment Counseling Services, which has had an
operational agenda item on incarcerated veterans and has included
an appendix in their report to the Secretary, their recent report to
the Secretary on incarcerated veterans’ needs. If you have no objec-
tion, sir, I will ask Dr. Blank to comment in that regard.

Mr. KASTENMEIER. Dr. Blank.
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Dr. Brank. That is accurate, that the report was recently deliv-
ered to the Department, to the Secretary. That in and of itself
would account for why there hasn’t been any further response as
yet from the VA. It has just received it.

Mr. KasteENMEIER. So obviously the position espoused in the com-
mittee’s report and the position of the Department of Veterans’ Af-
fairs is not or need not be the same. Is that correct? That is to say,
by recommending against enactment of this measure, the Depart-
ment of Veterans’ Affairs is in a sense repudiating that part of the
committee’s report relating to the proposed legislation. Is that not
correct?

Mr. Brigaam. The two are not, from our perspective, in total
synchronization. However, that is correct. Advisory committees are
representative of distinguished persons from civilian life who serve
in an advisory capacity to the Department and to its Secretary.
They present, from time to time, both formally and informally, a
series of suggestions, initiatives, and observations, some of which
are acted upon by the Department and some of which are not.

In general, I think it is fair to say, Mr. Chairman, that we will
pay very close attention to their most recent report to which Dr.
Blank referred and to the appendix on incarcerated veterans. I
would also say, by way of reiteration, that we do not contest the
merits of services to incarcerated veterans. We can understand the
potential value of direct services and certs’y benefits to persons
who are incarcerated, and particularly to thcse who are either in a
pre-release or parole status, who could benefit by our benefits and
services.

Mr. KastewMmEelEr. Dr. Blank, Congressman Brown suggested
that many of the Vietnam veterans who have had problems—and
there are close to 10,000 veterans incarcerated in the Federal
prison system alone—have problems that are likely to be service-
connected. For example, these veterans may have acquired a drug
dependency or suffer from some form of post-traumatic-stress disor-
der. Would you accept that proposition that Congressman Brown
announced?

Dr. Brank. It is a valid premise for a certain proportion of not
only the Vietnam veteran population in general but for that popu-
lation which is incarcerated.

The extensive national study on PTSD—post-traumatic-stress dis-
order—and other readjustment problems in Vietnam veterans
which was recently carried out by the Research Triangle Institute
on contract with the VA provided us with some very hard data
about these difficulties in the population in general. We know now,
for example, that about 15 percent of all Vietnam theater veterans
have diagnosable post-traumatic-stress disorder; that another 15
percent did at some time since the war but no longer do.

We do not have direct data from that study on veterans in
prison, because whereas the samples for the study were drawn
from random samples from military discharge records, the overall
number of theater veterans, Vietnam theater veterans, in prison is
sufficiently small that the study couldn’t pick up enough to study
them. It was less than 1 percent, which is not a surprise, given
what other data we have about the number of Vietnam veterans in
prison.
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The essential point, I think, for purposes here is that a certain
segment of the veterans in prison do have PTSD or do have drug
problems which are in some substantial way related to their war-
time experiences.

Myr. KasTeENMEIER. We know that there are 9,447 incarcerated
veterans in Federal prison. Does that represent a higher incidence
of incarceration than among their nonservice peers? Could we de-
termine whether they have committed felonies to any greater
degree than a comparable nonveteran population?

Dr. BLank. It is my understanding that the rate of incarceration
amongst both Vietnam theater veterans and air veterans is lower
than that in a comparable nonveteran populatio.

Mr. KAsTENMEIER. Is actually lower?

Dr. BLank. Yes. .

Mr. KasteNMEIER. Notwithstanding their problems?

Dr. BLaNk. That is one of the several important statistical pa-
rameters in this area. That of course does not detract in any way
{'lrom the facts of the problems that those who are incarcerated may

ave.

Mr. KastenMEIER. I don’t want to take too much more time, but
I do have just a couple of more questions and then I would like to
yield to my colleague.

Mr. Brigham, Congressman Brown would not really know how
much the bill might cost. Have you any notion? Can you give us
?ny guidance as to how much the bill might cost in its present
orm?

Mr. BrigEAM. Mr. Chairman, we can give you some general reac-
tion in terms of cost estimating, and would suggest that from a
basic readjustment counseling standpoint, that the numbers of per-
sonnel required to handle Federal cases probably would cause us to
expend somewhere in the vicinity of $3 million or slightly over $3
million, as what I would refer to as a very modest estimate of serv-
ice. That is an annual reflection.

The potential expansion to State and local facilities, penal insti-
tutions, and to the veteran population in those facilities, obviously
could increase our costs. In addition, we have not estimated the
specific costs that would be associated with regional office activities
in terms of liaison and outreach or claims processing, so I suppose 1
am suggesting to you, in its most modest estimating terms, that a
ba_se%ine of $3 to $3.5 million per annum cost would be a starting
point.

Mr. KasteNMEIER. That is very helpful, and I thank you.

I ask both Mr. Quinlan and Mr. Brigham this: In terms of this
legislation, did you check with the Office of Management and
Budget, and are you directed by OMB not to support the
legislation?

Mr. Quinvan. No, we are not so directed, Mr. Chairman.

o 1\1/\1%" KasteENMEIER. Had you cleared or checked your position with

Mr. BricuaM. We have not been directed in that regard, Mr.
Chairman, .

Mr. KASTENMEIER. So the conclusions really are your own——

Mr. BricEAM. That is correct, sir.

Mr. KASTENMEIER [confinuing]. Rather than another agency’s.
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I have a couple of more questions, but I am going to reserve
those and yield to the gentleman from North Carolina, Mr. Coble.

Mr. CoBLE, Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good to have you all with
us this morning.

Mr. Quinlan, given the large number of veterans who are incar-
cerated in the Federal prison system, have there been studies con-
ducted relating to the recidivism rate of these veterans?

Mr. QuiNLaN. Mr. Coble, not to my knowledge. We have several
recidivism studies, and I cannot tell you. I will submit that to you
for the record, but I do not know whether they differentiate veter-
ans from other types of releasees.

Mr. CoBrE. I think that would be interesting if we did know.
That is why I asked that.

Mr. Brigham, I am a veteran, as are many of my colleagues, and
I have a solidly proveteran voting record, as do many of my col-
leagues. Having said that—did I read you correctly by concluding
that if this measure passes, that it could result in perhaps, for
want of a better word, some disadvantageous results to the veter-
ans who are not incarcerated?

Mr, BrigaaM. I think, all things being equal, sir, that it would.
Short of additional resources to support the employment needs of
the Veterans' Benefits Administration and the Readjustment Coun-
seling Program to expand outreach and direct services to incarcer-
ated veterans, we would have little opportunity other than to
divert resources. Should this be enacted in its current form, we
would have little opportunity other than to divert resources from
working programs at the present time. To a major extent, that
would pull away from effective delivery of services and outreach
programs to other high-profile groups and high-need groups. 1
think the answer is yes.

Mr. CoBre. Do you know what positions, if any, organizations
lsaulcl%l as the VFW and American Legion have taken regarding this

1117

Mr. Brigaawm. I do not know on those organizations. We of course
are familiar with the Vietnam Veterans of America position. I un-
derstand they are testifying today before you. I do not know the
positions of the other major organizations.

Mr. CoBLE. Mr. Quinlan, back to you. Section 301 of the bill in
question provides that the VA or the Secretary develop a training
curriculum for the Bureau of Prisons employees to aid or assist
them in diagnosing and treating psychiatric disabilities peculiar to
veterans. Do the Bureau of Prisons employees need this training,
in your opinion?

Mr. QuinLaN, T think it would be very helpful, Mr. Coble. We do
currently have one program in existence, to my knowledge, for
post-traumatic-stress syndrome for inmates at our Federal peniten-
tiary in Lompoc, CA. Dr. Kerr, a psychologist for the Bureau of
Prisons, developed that program a couple of years ago, and I think
it has been having a very active experience since that time. But I
think it would be very, very helpful to make this a national pro-
gram, to have some help from the Department of Veterans’ Affairs
in identifying the proper curriculum for training staff.

Mr. CosLE. Thank you.

Yes, sir?
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Mr. BricHaM. I wonder, Mr. Coble, if we might take the opportu-
nity to comment on that also? I know Congressman Brown alluded
to the fact that we may need to look at some variations on this leg-
islation that might be more workable. In terms of the training op-
portunity, I do think there is something significant we can do, to
some degree with or without legislation. I wonder if Dr. Blank
might comment in that regard?

Dr. Brank. With regard to the topic of training curriculum, just
a couple of weeks after this bill was introduced last October, the
Society for Traumatic Stress Studies—which is a major mental
health professional organization in the traumatic stress field—de-
livered to the current presidents of the professional societies in psy-
chiatry, social work, psychology, and so on, a training curriculum
on post-traumatic-stress disorder which was developed by the socie-
ty over the last 2 years.

This is not a Department of Veterans’ Affairs product; it is a pro-
fessional society product. However, it is very good, and, we would
certainly be very happy to transmit this and try to facilitate its uti-
lization not only in the Federal prison system but at the State and
local level, and also to provide some fine-tuning specifically for vet-
erans which would be useful. This is a major educational develop-
ment in the traumatic stress field which has occurred since the bill
has been introduced, and we would be happy to pass that along and
introduce that in any way we could. '

Mr. CoBrE. Thank you, gentlemen.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. KasTENMEIER. 1 thank my colleague.

Mr. Quinlan, is it possible for you, if this legislation or something
like it were enacted, that you could implement this legislation
without great difficulty?

Mr. QuINLAN. I believe so, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. KastENMEIER. Just theoretically, anyway?

Mr. QuINLAN. Yes.

Mr. KasreNMEIER., What sort of coordination is there, if you can
tell us, between the agencies to ensure that incarcerated veterans
recieve the benefits and services to which they in fact are entitled?
Is there any coordination between the Department of Veterans’ Af-
fairs and the Federal Bureau of Prisons in that connection?

Mr. QuiNLAN, Well, I am embarrassed to admit, Mr. Chairman,
that I don’t believe there has been a tremendous amount of liaison
between our agencies before, certainly not at my level or at the
levels of division chiefs in our headquarters. There may well be
some liaisons at the local level in the institutions between case-
workers and people who are social workers for the Department of
Veterans' Affairs. As I was listening to Mr. Brigham testify I was
thinking, just exactly as your question suggests, that really there
should be greater coordinatien of programs and contacts between
our agencies.

Mr. KasteNnMEIER, Well, it occurs to me, particularly in light of
what Mr. Brigham and Dr. Blank have said, that there might be a.
question of what agency should have responsibility for providing

medical care for incarcerated veterans with a service-related dis-.

ability or post-traumatic-stress disorder. I am not sure myself. I
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assume that the Bureau of Prisons currently has to cope or deal
with that.

Mr. QuINLAN. Yes. Yes, we do, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. KASTENMEIER. But given the expertise developed separately
through the Department of Veterans' Affairs, it would seem that
they too might have a contribution to make in that connection.

Mr. QuiNLaN. Yes, I think a coordinated effort makes a tremen-
dous amount of sense.

Mr. KasTeENMEIER. Yes. I asked Congressman Brown if he felt
specifically that Vietnam veterans in the Federal Bureau of Pris-
ons were in fact not receiving normal services and benefits to
which they would be entitled, quite apart from those specifically di-
rected by law, in which there are certain differentiations made.
What is your view on that? Are there services and benefits that
your prison population is not receiving, that they might otherwise
receive?

Mr. QuUINLAN. 1t is difficult for me to answer that, Mr. Chairman.
I believe for the most part that incarcerated veterans in the
Bureau of Prisons are receiving the service-connected disability
payments and any other educational benefits that they might have
earned as a result of their service. I know a number of offenders
are able to get involved in college programs in institutions as a
result of their credits from the Veterans’ Administration. I have no
information that leads me to the conclusion that there are those
veterans who are not getting benefits they are entitled to.

Mr. KaASTENMEIER. Actually, I take it, you do not look at your
prison population in terms of whether they are veterans or nonvet-
erans. Can you or can you not tell us whether the profile of those
9,447 veterans is different than the other 50,000 or sc inmates that
you have, in terms of a general profile of the population?

Mr. QuINLAN. No, I can’t tell you at this time, but I would like to
look at that data for you and submit that for the record, if there is
any differentiation.

Mr. KasTENMEIER. I would like to just ask, as long as you are
here, if you don’t mind, a couple of questions about whether in
terms of the “boot camp” program proposal which we may be
taking up again, I understand you are implementing a form of such
a program, are you not, with or without specific legislative
direction?

Mr. QUINLAN. We are, in fact, yes. Excuse me, Mr. Chairman.
We are in the process of developing a concept that we call inten-
sive confinement, that is similar in many regards to what the 14
States that have developed ‘“boot camps” have done, with a couple
of exceptions.

Our proposal does not include, our program would not include
summary discipline, nor would it include military drill, but it
would be highly regimented, with a highly developed, intensive lit-
eracy training program and drug treatment program, as well as a
rigorous work day schedule, with very few amenities available to
the offenders. These would be first offenders, generally, who would
be medically qualified for this kind of a program, and we would
seek the concurrence of the sentencing judge for the particular par-
ticipant’s involvement in the program before they actually got in-
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volved. The program is not yet fully developed to the point where
we have given the definite signal or sign to go ahead.

Mr. KasTeNMEIER. Well, at least “intensive confinement” as a
euphemism appears to be a little more attractive than ‘“shock in-
carceration,” “boot camps,” or some of the other terms used, which
can only cause people to wonder just what we are up to.

I certainly think the self-imposed limitations on your intensive
confinement program are well indicated here. I would not think
that you would want to go too far afield. I don’t know whst the
Congress will ultimately pass, or with what wisdom, but I suspect
that these programs are not necessarily the answer to all of our
problems. It might be helpful to a certain population for a certain
period of time.

Well, I am going to stop here because I think we could go on and
on. There are scores of other issues related to the principal proposi-
tion and the legislation before us that we might well direct again,
either by letter or otherwise, to solicit your further views as we de-
velop thoughts on the proposal before us, as represented by the bill
that Congressman Brown has introduced. .

I want to thank Mr. Quinlan, as always, for his contnbutlon this
morning. Certainly Chairman Baer, it is a delight to greet him, and
I certainly want to thank Mr. Brigham and Dr. Blank for their con-
tributions today. Thank you, gentlemen.

Mr. KasTENMEIER. Our final witness this morning is Mr. Wayne
Smith. Mr. Smith is the director of Membership for Vietnam Vet-
erans of America. Mr. Smith, himself a Vietnam veteran, has been
very involved in providing assistance and support for incarcerated
veterans and their families. He is accompanied this morning by
Mr. Arthur J. Woods, the executive director of Vietnam Veterans
Resource and Service Center in Dallas, TX.

- Gentlemen, we appreciate your appearing this morning. Mr.
Smith, you may begin. In any event, if you wish to deliver your
statement, which is not really a long one, or if you want to summa-
rize, either way.

STATEMENT OF WAYNE F. SMITH, NATIONAL MEMBERSHIP
DIRECTOR, VIETNAM VETERANS OF AMERICA, INC,
ACCOMPANIED BY ARTHUR JOHN WOODS, EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR, VETERANS SERVICE AND RESOURCE CENTER,
DALLAS, TX

Mr. Smrta. I dv have a summary, Mr. Chairman.

The Vietnam Veterans of America deeply appreciate this invita-
tion to present our views on H.R. 3453. We would also like to thank
you for your efforts on behalf of Vietnam veterans with post-trau-
matic-stress disorder.

Regarding our credentials to effectively address H.R. 3453, the
Vietnam Veterans of America have some 3,800 members who are
incarcerated, and 35 incorporated VVA chapters located in Feder-
al, State, and local penal institutions throughout the United, States.
I might add that among the members of our incarcerated chapters,
they are composed of some prison staff members, a warden, and in
one case a former Lieutenant Governor. Finally, within our corpo-
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rate structure VVA has a standing Committee on Incarcerated
Veterans and a National Liaison for Incarcurated Veterans.

Mr. Chairman, it is necessary for me to put a human face on the
people whom this proposed legislation will affect, and put into per-
spective the fact that some of these veterans are people like my col-
league, John Woods of Dallas, TX. Currently John serves on the
VVA national organization’s standing Comimittee on Incarcerated
Veterans.

Shortly after his honorable discharge from the military, John
had a series of arrests and convictions for which he was incarcerat-
ed on multiple occasions. During his last stay in a correctional fa-
cility, he became active in a VVA incarcerated chapter, and follow-
ing his release he relied extensively on his experiences to provide
assistance to other incarcerated veterans.

In his current capacity as executive director of the Vietnam Vet-
erans Resource Center in Dallas, TX, he is an accredited veterans’
service benefit representative. In addition to his assisting veterans
with their dealings with the VA, he also assists prison facilities
with preparole and prerelease counseling for veterans. We have
asked John to be with us today to answer any questions that you
might have regarding the value of programs te assist incarcerated
veterans.

In another example, a former incarcerated Vietnam veteran,
Emanuel Heard, obtained his high school equivalency while in
prison, and upon release he graduated from college. Emanuel went
further by entering graduate school and earning a master’s degree.
This same veteran ultimately was hired by the VA’s Readjustment
Counseling Program—commonly known as the vet centers—and in
addition to his regular duties, he successfully returned and provid-
ed counseling at the very prison—Lorton Correctional Facility—
where he was once held as a prisoner and incarcerated.

With respect to the VA siatement to this committee by Mr.
Brigham, we are both puzzled wnd perplexed. The fact is, VA has
no policy as it pertains to incarcerated veterans, and their state-
ment today suggests that they do not wish to formulate a policy on
their own. In their statement, VA seems to have deliberately over-
stated the effect of H.R. 3453 and other VA programs.

We are not fooled by VA today because we know the limits of
what this legislation would accomplish. Hopefuily you are not
fooled, either. After all, what VA has said in 3% pages of sweeping
generalizations on the merits of the bill, it strongly suggests that
there is a need for clear direction from Congress.

Sir, I would like to also make one brief comment. That is, within
the prison structure and within the veterans centers there are oc-
casions when vet centers and their personnel go to prisons and
offer the counseling that this legislation proposes. It tends to be ar-
bitrary, and/or the initiative of a particular vet center counselor
and/or team leader. What this legislation hopefully will de is put a
form which the VA and the Federal Bureau of Prisons will follow.

Thank you.

Mr. KasTENMEIER. That concludes your presentation?

Mr, Smrta. Yes, it does, sir.

Mr. KasTENMEIER. Thank you for that brief report.

[The prepared statement of Messrs. Smith and Woods follows:]

-
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PrepARED STATEMENT OF WAYNE F. SMiTH, NaTiONAL MEMBERSHIP DIRECTOR, VIET-
NAM VETERANS OF AMERICA, INC. AND ARTHUR JOHN Woops, ExeEcuTive DIRECTOR,
VETERANS SERVICE AND REScUrce CENTER, DALras, TX

Mr. Chairman and members of the Subcommittee, the Vietnam
Veterans of America, Inc. (VVAX appreciates;this opportunity
to present its views on HR. 3453, the Incarcerated Veterans
Rehabilitation and Readjustment Act of 1989, Before going
into the details of this legislation, it seems appropriate to
offer some comment on the VVA'’s credentials fegarding the
issues associated with incarcerated veterans. Currently there
are 35 active VVA Chapters of incarcerated veterans located in
federal, state and local penal institutions around the
nation. Additionally, over the years, VVA has had contact
with an estimated 10,000 incarcerated veterans, who have
inquired about information, services and membership. We have
also had countlegs numbers of contacts by family members of
incarcerated veterans.

In each of the states where we have three or more active
chapters, there are state organizations of the VVA in which
our top state officials are elected by the VVA members in
their state. Two of these State VVA organizations, Missouri
and Massachusetts, have Presidents who are incarcerated
veterans. On our national headquarters staff, we employ one
individual, Edward Fallon, full time to maintain a 1liaison
with our incarcerated chapters and we organize legitimate
assistance for incarcerated members.

Sbme of our incarcerated chaptexrs count as members a
variety of prison officials including guards who are Vietnam
veterans. In one incarcerated chapter we have a Warden and a

former LT. Governor, who are members of the incaxcerated VVA
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chapter. In the institutions where our chapters are permitted
to be active, the veterans involved often meet in quasi~self
help support groups to attempt to do their own healing from
their wartime experiences. Often these chapters become
cohesive entities within the overall prison environment and
act as a stabilizing influence on the overall prison
community. At times, when prison disturbances have taken
place, our chapters have served to calm the environment and
assist in bringing these disturbances to a positive
resolution.

Moreover, a variety of former prisoners who have been
active nembers of incarcerated VVA chapters have gone on to
lead highly productive lives. . One such individual is Arthur
John Woods of Dallas, Texas. We are pleased to make him part
of our witness team for today’s hearing. Currently, John
serves on the VVA national organization’s Standing Committee
on Incarcerated Veterans.

Shortly, after release from the military, John had a
series of arrests and convictions for which he was
incarcerated on multiple occasions. During his last stay in a
correctional facility, he became active in the VVa
incarcerated chapter and following release he relied
extensively on his experiences to provide assistance to
incarcérated veterans. In his current capacity as Executive
Director of the Vietnam Veterans Resource and Service Center
in Dallas, he is an accredited veterans benefits service

representative.
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In addition to assisting veterans with their dealings
with the VA, he also assists prison facilities with pre-
releagse and pre-parole counseling. On some occasions, prison
facilities have invited him to organize the coordination of
presentations by representatives of other government programs
such as the Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA), Targeted Job

Tax Credit and other local programs of potential benefit to
individuals about to be released from penal facilities. Mr.

Woods has also written a book the VVA is about publish which
details the programs and agencies that can be relied upon to
assist incarcerated veterans. We have asked John to pe with
us for today’s hearing to answer any questiéns you might have
concerning the value of programs to assist incarcerated
vaeterans.

In another example, a former incarcerated Vietnam
veteran, Emanuel Heard obtained his high school équivalency,
while in prison an#i later entered and graduated from college,
entered Graduate School and obtained a Masters Degree. This
same veteran was ultimately hired by the VA‘s Veterans
Readjustment Counseling Program (Vet Centers) and in addition
to his regular duties, he successfully returned to provide
coungeling as a professional therapist and positive role model
at the very prison where he was once incarcerated.

Mr Chairman, both Messrs. Woods and Heard clearly
benefited from tbe positive peer support they received from
other Vietnam veterans through self help efforts. ‘We in VVA
are convinced that countless numbers of incarcerated veterans

could also be rehabilitated with the implementation of this
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proposed legislation.

Mr. Chairman, the VVA has worked very.closely with the
author of the legislation at hand, Representative George
Brown, in order to develop what we beliesve iz a long overdue
approach to offering systematic assistance in addressing the
legitimate needs of incarcerated veterans. In offering the
benefit of our experience with incarnerated veterans to
Representative Brown’s efforts, we have been painstakingly
careful to prevent anything in this bill from being construed
as "soft on criminals". Imnstead, thie bill simply proposes tc
offer the counseiing, treatment and guidance that veterans in
need of readjustment assistance ought to receive in order to
be balanced, productive citizens. We firmly believe that
offering the assistance contained in this legislation will
help to reduce recidiwvism among incarcerated veterans by
offering some of the same readjustment assistance that has
improved the lives of non incarcerated veterans, some of whom
have service~connected disabilities. This, we believe, will
become most evident among those incarcerated veterans
afflicted with, but as yet undiagnosed, Post Traumatic Stress
Disorxder.

From a public safety as well as a public policy
perspective, it must be understood that it makes far more
sense to assist veterans prior to release from prisons than it
does to await release and take our chances. An inmate veteran
fully aware of VA-provided benefits and counseling programs as

well as employment programs for veterans operated by the
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Department of Labor (DoL) has to be said to be better prepared
for release than an inmate veteran releaged without such
preparation. Similarly, an inmate veteran with a carefully
designed post-release plan of acticn for continued counseling,
benefits application and employment assistance stands a better
chance of staying out of trouble than an inmate veteran
released without such a plan.

The bill itself is aimed at federal prisons and, as such,
focuses its requirements on the Federal Bureau of Prisons
along with the VA. Other agencies involved such as Dol are
expected to play important but lesser roles. In being limited
to federal prisons, we have made a concerted decision to offer
state and local prison systems an opportunity to emulate what
wa believe can be a workable model for dealing with
incarcerated veterans.

In internal ;iscussions within the VVA, the possibility
of forcing state and local prison systems to adopt this bill’s
prescribed approach by withholding federal assistance as a
provision of the legislation was discussed and set aside in
favor of supporting a bill that, if enacted, should produce a
workable program approach that sells itself.

Title I of HR. 3453 requires that any individual in a
federal prison who is a veteran be identified as such and that
the names of these individuals be transferred to the VA. The
VA, in turn, is then required to advise these veteraﬁs of what
their status as prisoners means relative to receipt of

benefits. In this connectien, the VA is also required to
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advise incarcerated veterans of their options. FPor example,
current law requires near total suspensian of disability
compensation payments, but allows the incarcerated veteran to
apportion the withheld amount to a spouse. Currently, the VA
offers no information to these veterans advising them of the
apportionment option. ‘

Sadly, in this regard, the VA has no policy whatscever on
incarcerated veterans. What services we are aware of that the
VA provides to the incarcerated veteran are limited to
psychological readjustment counseling informally provided by
individuals employed in VA "Vet Centers" around the country.
When these services are provided, there is usually no record
of the activity because there is no officially approved VA
Central Office-approved policy.

PTitle II of this bill would remedy the absence of a VA
policy con psychological readjustment counseling for
incarcerated veterans by requiring the counseling to be
provided. Additionally, incarcerated veterans would be
permitted to be given VA medical examinations to determine
military service-related disabilities. Apart from this, if an
incarcerated veteran believes his or her medical problems are
related to exposure to Agent Orange in Vietnam, it is
impossible to secure an Agent Orange exam or be placed on the
VA’s Agent Orange registry. This bill would remedy these
shortcomings and others by requiring the VA to designate
employees in VA benefits offices and Vet Centers as

incarcerated veterans liaisons charged with coordinating
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services and benefits.

Title IIT of the bill would augment Title II by requiring
the VA to develop a training curriculum for use by prison
facilities and other interested parties in acquiring the
knowledge and expertise needed to identify, diagnose and treat
psychological readjustment problems such as Post Traumatic
Stress Disorder. The rationale here is based on an
understanding that some prison facilities, for whatever
reason, may object to outsiders entering their facilities and
the fact that the VA’'s resources may be too limited to do all
of the counseling and treatment needed.

Title IV of the bill is designed to address pre-release
issues. One of these is the provision of information on
benefits that may be available upon release. Knowledge of
where the nearest VA Vet Center is located is one example.
Another is the extent to which these individuals could avail
themselves of employment and training programs operated
through the DoL. This title also permits the U.S. Parole
Commigsion to require veterans to avail themselves of local
Vet Centers for counseling as a condition of parole.

Title V of the bill requires the VA to make available to
state and local prison systems whatever information it
generates for federal prisons if requested to provide this
information. As suggssted at the outset, nothing here
requires state and local facilities to participate although
the availability of assistance to state and local prisocn

systems is designed to provide strong encouragement.



56

The final title, title IV, contains reporting
requirements on an annual basis so that furtﬁer monitoring of
the success or failure of the overall incarcerated veterans
initiative c¢an be accomplished. With this information,
further adjustments or improvements can be considered.

In conclusion Mr Chairman, we believe HR. 3453 to be a
balanced approach to providing needed services to incarcerated
veterans. Specifically, we believe this bill has struck and
appropriate balance between the need to hold perpetrators of
criminal conduct accountable while recognizing that legitimate
services provided to incarcerated veterans can be expected to
reduce repeat offenses. Naturally we hope you agree.

Mr Chairman, that concludes our statements.
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Mr. KasteNnMeier. What particular obstacles have you run up
agau:’nst with respect to reaching veterans in Federal prisons, if
any?

Mr. Smite. Well, typically, sir, it tends to be by word of mouth
that veterans who are incarcerated will hear about us. We have
had some 10,000 contacts over the history of the organization by in-
carcerated veterans and their family members, ircidentally, who
have called us asking for information. This is at the disadvantage
of these same people contacting the VA to inquire as to what rights
and/or benefits they have.

I might also add, sir, that some of these same incarcerated veter-
ans were incarcerated before 1980, that is, before the enactment of
the Vietnam Era Veterans Readjustment Act and the vet centers
program. Additionally, it was frankly before the recognition of
post-traumatic-stress disorder as a diagnosis. '

John Woods might wish to comment in terms of some of the
accessibility.

Mr. KasTENMEIER. Mr. Woods.

Mr. Woobs. The accessibility, Honorable Chairman—and I do ap-
preciate this opportunity—I face, especially in dealing with the
Federal Bureau of Prisons, is that I am allowed to enter the insti-
tution, different institutions within the system, at different times,
whether incorporated or nonincorporated, perhaps forming chap-
ters of VVA entities, to reach the veterans and deal with the Lene-
fits programs and to help them avoid alternatives of debt overpay-
ment demand collections by the VA on their disability compensa-
tion and such, then, shortly after I get into the system, and the or-
ganization gets solid, productive and in working order, the prison
system then expels me from reentering the institution until a later
date and time, for no real apparent reason that I can find.

One of the big issues that I am dealing with here, is almost one-
fifth of the total veteran prison population, I believe, is also in the
States of Texas, Louisiana, Oklahoma, and New Mexico. This is
also a VA region, which is also a VVA region. I have a very asser-
tive program of going into State and Federal prison systems, and
the immediate dealing is to notify the prisoners coming into each
gystem, that are veterans drawing compensation, of their rights
and entitlements.

For instance, Mr. Brigham spoke of how the veteran is allowed,
if perhaps he were previously receiving 20 percent or more com-
pensation for a service-connected disability, he is then dropped to a
10-percent ratio while he is in the prison system. However, the
family can appropriate the remainder of that disability compensa-
tion. In other words, if an individual was drawing 100 percent com-
pensation for a physical disability when he committed his crime,
and he enters the penal system on a felony conviction, his family—
survivors, so to speak—could be drawing 90 percent of his disability
compensation while he remains incarcerated. _

There is no system by which the VA, nor by the Department of
Justice, nor the Federal Bureau of Prisons is to notify these veter-
ans that this apportionment is an entitlement. Therefore, what is -
happening is, there is a 60-day grace period once an individual is
convicted of a crime, in which he is required by law to repeat to
the DVA of his incarcertation—however, this is not public informa-
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tion for the individual veteran to find, available upon entering the
panel system—that he is required to notify the VA that he has
been convicted and is incarcerated. If his family qualifies as “de-
pendent” upon the disability VA compensation that he had been
reviewing, such as he had been paying over 50 percent of their fi-
nancial necessities, they can legally appropriate that money.

Well, what happens now is, the individual is going beyond that
60 days limitation and the famlly then is notified by the VA that
he is in default by not having notified the VA of his incarceration,
and he is then suspended, and then there is an overpayment
demand issued by the VA and his family is faced with a great fi-
nancial burden. Normally what is happening in Texas and Louisi-
ana, I find, is that these families are then forced to go on welfare
programs, food stamp programs, and there is a great deal of burden
placed on the family.

As Mr. Quinlan said, they have a financial, an inmate financial
responsibility program, initiated by the Department of Justice, in
which, they are required to pay their Federal debts. That is true,
but the thing is, this is actually placing a secondary financial
burden on the family, which did not commit the crime which re-
sulted in the individual being in prison.

The family, on welfare, food stamps and such, all of a sudden the
wife, who may be working, her income taxes may be assessed or
attacked by the Government in the collection of this debt, while
the inmate is working at a very minimum amount of money. It
starts at 11 cents per hour, up to $1.10 per hour, while he is in the
prison industry program.

He wants to send the majority of that money home to assist his
family financially. However, the Department of Justice is assessing
the majority of that money. In some cases inmates are working 40
to 50 hours a week in Federal prison industries and they are only
allowed to keep $15 tc $30 a month of their pay at perhaps $1.10
?n hlour That is creating an unnecessary, undue burden on the
amily.

Mr. KastenMeIer. The bill itself deals with the Federal Bureau
of Prisons. What if any is the difference in circumstances for veter-
ans, and Vietnam veterans in particular, incarcerated in State or
local institutions as opposed to Federal? Do you find that there is
any substantial difference in their benefit level or their accessibil-
ity to counseling or contact with you or others, in Federal as op-
posed to in State prisons?

Mr. SmritH. Again, sir, there seems to be no data in terms of how
many incarcerated veterans there are. I think there are some
650,000 prisoners throughout the United States.

I would submit that we speculate today that the number of incar-
cerated Vietnam veterans has reduced. The war has been over for
15 years, and many of these men have certainly gotten out of
prison. We like to think some of what VVA has done in terms of
providing support, referrals, and counseling, that they have in
effect been able to avert returning to the facility.

But the truth of the matter is that we have been contacted by
prison psychologists asking for information. We have been contact-
ed by a warden who wanted to form a VVA chapter in the Jeffer-
son City, Missouri Penitentiary, after hearing of another chapter

>
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that we have that had a real stabilizing effect on the prison
population.

But unfortunately, sir, we don’t have the data. Typically, the
question is not asked upon admission, if this person is a veteran or
not.

Mr. KASTENMEIER. So at this point you cannot determine wheth-
er there is a difference in how a veteran is accommodated with re-
spect to any benefits or other services between State and Federal
prison. You can’t determine or you haven't been able to determine
that there is a difference.

Mr. SmrrH. Well, with respect to VA, I do not think the VA
makes a distinction in terms of a prisoner, be he in a State facility
or a Federal facility. Typically, as Mr. Woods indicated, these vet-
erans are not informed what their rights are or benefits are or not,
so the access to treatment does not seem to make any difference,
sir.

Mr. KasTeNMEIER. I would also be curious as to whether any of
the other veterans' organizations have shown any interest in this
problem, other than Vietnam Veterans of America. Do you know
whether DAV, AMVETS, or any of the other veterans’ organiza-
tions have shown any interest in this question?

Mr. Smrra. Well, franily, the Stars and Stripes was good enough
to carry a four-part series on the issue of incarcerated veterans
about 1% years ago, and the reporter at the time did obtain com-
ments from AMVETS, DAV, and I believe VFW, sir. These were
State departments; these were not the national organization. The
short answer is, we do not know what the opinion of the national
organization is.

Mr. KastENMEIER. Well, one of the problems, and I think sort of
a recharacterization of the Department of Veterans’ Affairs views,
as I understand it, is that they in the abstract are not opposed to
further aid in terms of services to federally incarcerated veterans,
but they apparently see it as a problem of resource allocation.
Given the fact that there may be cutbacks in veterans hospitals or
in this or that other program or service, they are not interested at
the moment in undertaking any further commitment of services
without the cost element being involved. .

Apparently this may be reflected by some of the veterans’ orga-
nizations, too, that in the abstract wouldn’t oppose helping incaxr-
cerated veterans, but would only support a concrete proposal if
they felt it wouldn't diminish resources available to them or to
others under existing programs. Is that not one of the problems
you see?

Mr. Smrra. Well, frankly, sir, the Vet Centers program, as we
understand it, it is extremely cost-effective. We tend to believe that
with the proposed legislation for PTSD, to expand the mission of
VA to address the more recently discovered greater numbers of
veterans with PTSD, we think that this program, the proposal of
H.R. 3453, could be absorbed within that context.

Moreover, there are, as Dr. Blank indicated, forums by which
professional psychiatrists and medical doctors do gather, and pres-
entations could be made with respect to agent orange in addition to
the post-traumatic-stress disorder evaluations. I might finally say
that the legislation calls for the Federal Bureau of Prisons physi-
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cians to be trained by VA physicians to develop a protocol for the
agent orange registry, just access, so we think that the costs are
very modest.

The long run, sir, is that eventually most of these veterans will
be released from prison, and we suspect that eventually the costs
for treatment and services will be simply passed along.

Mr. KastenmElgr. Well, certainly the $8 million price tag sug-
gested by Mr. Brigham is not that overwhelming in terms of a na-
tional figure. However, given the present budget situation, I sup-
pose it may be a problem. But when considering that we have
given . priority to so many, many other far more costly commit-
ments, this does not seem to be that extraordinary.

Mr. Smita. Could I embellish on that, Mr. Chairman?

Mr. KasTeNMEIER. Mr. Woods.

Mr. Woobs. Yes. I would like to suggost sumething that I have
identified in Texas, Louisiana, Oklahoma, and Arkansas very re-
cently, and it deals with—Mr. Quinlan suggested that 47 percent, 1
believe it was, of the Federal prison population has some sort of
extraordinary drug or chemical dependency problem which led to
their criminal behavior. Mr. Brigham suggested, as did Dr. Blank,
that many of these veterans had a drug-related problem as well as
a psychological problem prior to their criminal behavior pattern.

What is happening here, and what the VA has done ¢n the out-
side for the free world veteran, is they have a dual disorder treat-
ment program where an individual with chemical or substance
abuse prob.ems is detoxed, goes through a chemical dependency
program, then goes into a psychological program for PTSD, which
will theoretically resolve the issues which led to chemical
dependency.

Asg Mr, Quinlan said, the drug usage or the alcohol abuse usage
in the prison system is very limited. They had a small number of
positive urine tests, of those that were tested by random in the
prison system. Therefore, what I would suggest is that those veter-
ans, by their own statement 9,447, which is almost one out of every
five inmates in the Federal system, are basically drug-free veter-
ans. The drugs and the psychological problems probably contribut-
ed highly to that criminal behavior pattern.

So they are becoming drug-free while they go into the system—
although not totally, as I can tell you this from firsthand experi-
ence. In the prison system there are drugs, and they can be made
available, however, the majority of those veterans that had those
dual disorders in their criminal behavier pattern are drug or chem-
ical-free while incarcerated. There is no program set forth by any
agency to deal with the emotional problem which led to the chemi-
cal dependency and criminal behavior during the veterans’
incarceration.

What the VA is doing out in the free world, in their different
medical centers, is detoxing them and then working on that psy-
cholaogical behavior problem before they go into perhaps a criminal
behavior pattern.

What 1 would like to suggest is, maybe you would like to look at
the number of those veterans that went into a prison system and a
psychological problem, that were drug- or chemical-free during the
course of their incarceration, then were released without the bene-
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fit of psychological counseling while they were in the system, and
then became a burden to the VA medical centers when they
became again substance abusers and were going back.

So there is a cost to be found that I feel needs to be identified
and appreciated. -If we don’t take care of them while they are in
the prison system, with that perhaps $3.5 million expansion of
budget, then the burden and cost is going to fall on the VA medical
centers upon their release, when they go back into chemical de-
pendency or substance abuse, and they still have not resolved the
issues from their Vietnam war experience.

Mr. KasteNMEIER. Well, I want to, in conclusion, commend the
efforts that you and your organization have made to maintain a
" counseling service with respect to incarcerated veterans, and also
your interest in supporting legislation of this sort, an improvement
in terms of what the Government itself can do, apart from your
own organization.

That is all the questions I have today, and that concludes the
hearings on the bill H.R. 3453, Incarcerated Veterans Rehabilita-
tion and Readjustment Act of 1989. The committee stands
adjourned.

[Whereupon, at 11:40 a.m., the subcommittee adjourned, to
reconvene subject to the call of the Chair.]
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APPENDIXES

ApPENDIX 1.—LETTERS, EtC., FROM WITNESSES

FACT SHEET
DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS (VA) BENEFITS
FOR VETERANS ON PAROLE

As a veteran on parole there are some facts about Department of Veterans
Affairs (VA) benefits you may be interested in knowing.

COMPENSATION FOR DISABILITY ~ VA compensation is payment for
disability(ies) incurred in or aggravated during military service.
Veterans must have been discharged or separated under other than
dishonorable conditions to be eligible for VA compensation. Compensation
payments to incarcerated veterans are reduced while they are in prison.
However, once a veteran is released from prison, VA may resume
compensation payments. Reinstatement after release from incarceration may
be based upon the degree of severity of the service connected
disability(ies) at that time. Release from incarceration includes
participation in a work~release or halfway house program, parole and
completion of the sentence. Payments may be resumed effective the date of
release if we receive notice within one year of the release date.
Otherwise, payments will resume effective the date the notice 0. release
is received in VA,

PENSION - VA pension is for wartime veterans with limited income who have
been discharged under other than dishonorable conditions after 90 days or
more .and who are permanently and totally disabled. Veterans 65 years of
age or older and not working are considered permanently and totally
disabled. Pension payments are discontinued to veterans while
incarcerated. VA pension payments may be resumed upon release from
jncarceration if the veteran again meets VA eligibility requirements. The
rules for the effective date in resuming pension payments are the same as
the above rules for compensation.

VET CENTERS (READJUSTMENT COUNSELING SERVICES) - Veterans who served on
active duty during the Vietnam era may be provided counseling to assist
them in readjusting to civilian 1ife. Readjustment counseling services
include a general assessment to ascertain whether the veteran has
jdentifiable social or psycholegical problems stemming form military
service. Readjustment counseling services also include individual
counseling, group counseling, and family counseling. If the services
requested by the veteran are beyond the authorized mission of the
readjustment counseling program, the veteran requesting such services will
recelve support and assistance in obtaining the needed services.

EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE ~ There are a number of different VA education
benefit programs based upon the period of service and/or your
participation in the program. The following is an explanatiun of some of
those education programs:

VEAP (POST-VIETNAM ERA VETERANS EDUCATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM) - If you
entered service on or after January 1, 1977, and participated in the
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voluntary contributory program while on active duty, VA may pay you
benefits while you pursue an approved program of education. Maximum is 36
months or the number of months contributions were made, whichever is the
lesser. Participants have 10 years from the date of last discharge or
release from active duty within which to use these benefits.

MONTGOMERY G.I. BILL-ACTIVE DUTY -~ If you entered service after June
30, 1985, and agreed to the reduction from your military pay while on
active duty, VA will pay you benefits while you pursue an approved program
of education. Maximum is 36 months. You must begin your course in time
to finish in 10 years from the date of discharge from active duty or 10
years from the date you completed 4 years service in the Selected Reserve,
whichever s appropriate.

MONTGOMERY G.I. BILL-SELECTED RESERVE - If you are a member of the
Selected Reserve, including the National Guard, after June 30, 1985, who
enlisted, reenlisted, or extended an enlistment for 6 or more years or an
officer who has agreed to serve 6 years beyond any other obligated
service, VA may pay you benefits while you pursue approved training.
Maximum is 36 months. You must complete your course within 10 years from
the date eligibility began or the date of separation from the Selected
Reserve, whichever is later.

VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION - If you have a disability which either
began or worsened during active duty, you may be eligible for vocational
rehabilitation services to assist you to overcome your employment handicap
and better handle day-to-day 1iving activities. As part of rehabilitation
program, VA may pay for your tuition, fees, books, tools, and other
program expenses as well as provide you a monthly living aliowance. Once
you have taken part in a vocational rehabilitation program, VA will assist
you to get a job.

REVIEW OF DISCHARGES - Each military service maintains a Discharge Review
Board with authority to make changes in discharges that were not awarded
ty a general court-martial or for medical reasons. The VA will provide
you general advice and application forms if you wish ta seek an upgrade in
your military discharge.

EMPLOYMENT ASSISTANCE - If you apply for Federal employment you may be
eligible for five-point preference on initial applications. Disabled
veterans may be granted 10-point preference. State Empioyment/Job Service
offices also provide priority assistance.

HOME_LOAN GUARANTY - VA home loans are made by private lenders such as
mortgage companies, credit unions, banks and savings and loan
associations. To qualify for a VA home loan you must have available home
loan entitlement and must have satisfactory credit and sufficient income
to repay the loan and meet other expenses and obligations. You must also
occupy or intend to occupy the property as your own home within a
reasonable period of time after closing the loan.
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BURIAL BENMEFITS ~ The VA 1s authorized to furnish an American flag to
drape the casket of a veteran whose military service was other than
dishonorable. An allowance not to exceed $300 may be paid toward burial
and funeral expenses of deceased veterans who were, at the time of death,
entitled to receive pension or compensation, or would have been entitled
to receive compensation hut for the receipt of military retired pay.
Eligibility is also established when death occurs in a VA facility to
which the deceased was properly admitted. A plot or interment allowance,
not exceeding $150, also may be paid if the wartime veteran is not buried
in a national cemetery. Where the death is service connected, burial
allowance up to $1,500 1s payable in iieu of the basic burial and plot
interment allowanges.

MEDICAL BENEFIYS - VA provides a wide range of medical care benefits
including help for alcoholism and other drug dependency to
service-connected veterans and to nonservice-connected veterans who meet
certain eligibility criteria. Eligibility for hospitalization is divided
into categories. Hithin these categories, eligibility assessment
procedures, based on income levels, are used for determining whether
nonservice-connected veterans are eligible for cost-free VA medical care.

INSURANCE - Veterans separated from service on or after April 25, 1951,
who are granted a service~connected disability may apply to VA for up to
$10,000 1ife insurance coverage at standard insurance rates within 1 year
from the date VA notifies the veteran that the disability has been rated
as service-connected. For complete information on VA insurance benefits,
write to the VA Insurance Center, P. O Box 8079, Philadeiphia, PA 19101 or
telephone toll-free by dialing 1-800-669-8477.

To obtain more information about these and other VA benefits, you should
contact your nearest VA regional office. Toll-free telephone service is
available to all our regional offices, if you would like to call and speak
with a veterans benefits counselor.



66

DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS (VA)
REGIONAL OFFICE ADDRESSES AND
TOLL-FREE TELEPHONE NUMBERS

VA Regional Office
474 S. Court St.
Montgomery, AL 36104
* 1-800-392-8054

VA Regional Office ~
235 E. 8th Ave.
Anchorage, AK 99501
1-800-478-2500

VA Regional Office
3225 N. Central Ave.
~ Phoenix, AZ 85012

* 1-800-352-0451

VA Regional Office

Building 65, Ft. Roots

P. 0. Box 1280 (Mail Only)
Horth Little Rock, AR 72115
* 1-800-482-5434

VA Regional Office

Federal Building

11000 Wilshire Blvd.

West Los Angeles, CA 90024
* 1-800-352-6592

VA Regional Office

2022 Caminc Del Rio North
San Diego, CA 92108

* 1-800~532-3811

VA Regional Office

211 Main St.

San Francisco, CA 94105
* 1-800-652-1240

VA Regional Office
44 Union Blvd.

P. 0. Box 25126
Denver, CO 80225

* 1-800-332-6742

VA Regional Office
450 Main St.
Hartford, CT 06103
* 1-800-842-4315

VA Regional Office
1601 Kirkwood Highway
Wilmington, DE

* 1-800-292-7855

VA Regional Office

941 N. Capitol St., NE
Hashington, D.C. 20421
872-1151

VA Regional Office

144 1st Ave. S.

St. Petersburg, FL 33701
* 1-800-282-8821

VA Regionai Oifice
730 Peachtree St. N.E.
Atlanta, GA 30365

* 1-800~-282-0232

VA Regional Office
PJKK Federal Bldg.
300 Ala Moana Blvd.
P. 0. Box 50188
Honolulu, HI 96850
* 1-800-232-2535

VA Regional Office

Federal Bildg. & U.S. Courthouse
550 K. Fort St., Box 044

Boise, ID

* 1-800-632-2003

VA Regional Office
536 S. Clark St.
P. 0. Box 8136
Chicago, IL 60680
* 1-800-972-5327

VA Regional Office

575 N. Pennsylvania St.
Indianapotis, IN 46204
* 1-800-282-4540

VA Regional Office
210 Halnut St.

Des Moines, IA 50309
* 1-800-362-2222

VA Regional Office

Blvd. Office Park

901 George Washington Blvd.
Hichita, KS 67211

* 1-800-362-2444

* The Tolli-free Telephone Numbers For These Regional Offices Are Due To
Change In The Near Future. Please Consult Your Telephone Directory Under
U. S. Government, Department Of Veterans Affairs.




VA Regional Office

600 Martin Luther King, Jr. Place
Louisvilie, KY 40202

* 1-800-292-4562

VA Regional Office
701 Loyola Ave.

New Orleans, LA 70113
* 1-800-462-9510

VA Regional Office
Togus, ME 04330
* 1-800-452-1935

VA Regional Office
31 Hopkins Plaza
Federal Building
Baltimore, MD 21201
* 1-800-492-9503

VA Regional Office

John Fitzgerald Kennedy
Federal Building
Government Center
Boston, MA 02203

* 1-800-392-6G15

VA Regional Office
Patrick V. McNamara
Federal Building
477 Michigan Ave.
Detriot, M1 48226
1-800-827-1996

VA Regional Office & Insurance Ctr
Federal Bldg., Fort Snelling

St. Paul, MN 55111

1-800~-692-212)

VA Regional QOffice
100 H. Capitol St.
Jackson, MS 39269
* 1-800-682-5270

VA Regional Office
Federal Building
1520 Market St.

St. Louis, MO 63103
* 1-800-392-3761

VA Regional Office
Fort Harrison, MT 59636
*1-800-~332-6125
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VA Regional Office
5631 S. 4Bth St.
Lincoin, NE 68516
1-800-827-6544

VA Regional Office
1201 Terminal Hay
Reno, NV 89520
1-800-992-5740

VA Regional Office
275 Chesnut St.
Manchester, NH 03101
* 1-800-562-5260

VA Regional Office
20 Washington Place
Newark, .NJ 07102
1-800-242-5867

VA Regional Office

Dennis Chavez Federal Bldg.
U.S. Courthouse

500 Gold Ave., S.H.
Albuguerque, NM 87102

* 1-800-432-6853

VA Regional Office
Federal Building
111 W. Huron St.
Buffalo, NY 14202
* 1-800-462-1130

VA Regional Office

252 Seventh Ave. at 24th St.
New York City, NY 10001
1-800-827-8954

VA Regional Office
Federal Building

251 N, Main St.
Hinston-Salem, NC 27156
1-800-642-0841

VA Regional Office

655 First Ave., North

2101 North Elm St. (mail only)
Fargo, ND 58102
1-800-342-4790

VA Regional Office

Anthony J. Celebrezze Federal Bldg.
1240 E. 9th St.

Cleveland, OH 44199

1-800-827-8272

* The Toll=-free Telephone Numbers For These Regional Offices Are Due To
Change In The Near Future. Please Consult Your Telephone Directory Under
U. S. Government, Department Of Veterans Affairs.



VA Reglonal Office
Federal Bldg.

125 S.. Main St.
Muskogee, OK 74401
* 1-800-482-2800

VA Regional Office
Federal Bldg.

1220 SH 3rd Avenue
Portland, OR 97204
* 1-800-452-7276

VA Regional Office

& Insturance Center

P. 0. Box 8079

5000 Wissahickon Ave.
Philadelphia, PA 15101
1-800-869-8387

VA Reglonal Office
1000 Liberty Ave.
Pittsburgh, PA 15222
* 1-800-242-0233

VA Regional Office

U. S. Courthouse & Fed. Bldg.

Carlos E. Chardon St
San Juan, PR 00936
1-800-462-4135

VA Regional Office
380 Hestminster Mall
Providence, R1 02903
1-800-322-0230

VA Regional Office
1801 Assembly St.
Cotumbia, SC 29201

* 1-800-922-1000

VA Regional Office
P.0. Box 5046

2501 H. 22nd $t.
Sioux Falls, SD 57117
1-800-952-3550

VA Regional Office
110 9th Ave., S.
Nashville, TN 37203
* 1-800-342-8330

VA Regional Office
2515 Murworth Dr.
Houston, TX 77054
* 1-800-3%92-2200

* The Toll-free Telephone Numbers For These Regional Offices Are Due To
Please Consult Your Telephone Directory Under

Change In The Near Future.
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VA Regional Office .
1400 N. valley Mills Dr. -
Haco, TX 76799

* 1-800-792-3271

VA Regional Office

P.0. Box 11500 -
Federal Bldg. .

125 S, State St.

Salt Lake City, UT 84147

* 1-800-662-9163

VA Regional Office
Hhite River Jdunction, VT 05001
* 1-800-622-4134

VA Regional Office
210 Franklin Rd., SW
Roanoke, VA 24011

* 1-800-542-5826

VA Regional Office
Federal Bldg.

915 2nd Ave.
Seattle, WA 98174
* 1-800-552-7480

VA Regional Office
640 Fourth Ave.
Huntington, WV 25701
* 1-800-642-3520

VA Regional Office

5000 K. National Ave., Bidg 6
Milwaukee, WI 53295

* 1-B00-242-9025

VA Regional Office
2360 E. Pershing Blvd.
Cheyenne, WY 82001
1-800-442-2761

U. S. Government, Department Of Veterans Affairs.
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‘V‘\ Department of
N Veterans Affairs

VA BENEFITS FOR INCARCERATED VETERANS

COMPENSATION FOR DISABILITY

The VA can pay you limited caompensation if you
were disabled by injury or disease incurred in or
zggravated by active duty service in line of duty.
it you were awarded compensation aftér October 1,
1980, your compansation will be paid as foliows:

{1} Veterans rated 20 percent or more disabled

are limited to the rate payable for 10 percent

disability;

{2) All others are limited to one-half of the 10

percent rate.
Once a veteran is released from prison,
compensation payments may be reinstated based
upon the severity of the service connected
disability{ies) at that time.

PENSION

Vaterans in receipt of VA pension will have pay-
ments terminated 61 days after imprisonment for a
felony or misdemaanor. Pension payments may be
resumed upon release from prison if the veteran
agoin meets VA eligibility requirements.

APPORTIONMENT YO DEPENDENTS

The VA may apponlon all. or part of tha amount of
tha or benefit- pay which
the Imprisonad ve(sran is not recalvlng and pay it
to a spouse or children based upon their reed.
Either the incarcerated wveteran or his/her depen-
dent{s) may request an apportionment by sending to
the VA a2 written statement requestion an
apportionment.

INSURANCE

Incarceration in itself does not deprive an individuet
of VA Insurance ‘benefits.. If you had National
Service Life or Veterans Group Life Insurance
coverage and it has lapsed, you nay be z2ble to
reinstate it provided you meet the necessary
requirements. Veterans Group Life Insurance may ba
available to you provided you had Servicemen's
Group Life insurance at the time you were released
from active duty. You must apply for it within 120
days from the dste of relezse from active duty znd
meet necessary requirements,

BURIAL BENEFITS

An allowance not to exceed $300 may be paid
toward buria) snd funersl expenses of deceased
veterans who were, at the time of death, entitied to
receive pensi or A plot or
internment allowance, not exceeding $150, ulso may
be pald it tha wartime veteran is not -buried in a
national cemetary.

REVIEW OF DISCHARGE

Each miiltary service maintains a Discharge Review
Board with authority to make changes in discharges
that were not awarded by a general court martial or
tor ‘medical reasons. The VA will provide you
general advice and application forms if you wish to
segk an upgrade in your military discharge,

T0 OBTAIN ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THESE AND OTHER VA BENEFITS, YOU MAY WRIE T3

Department o} Veterans Aftairs
Vererans Assistance Service {27}
810 Vermont Avenue, NW
Washingtan, 0C 20420

VA FOMM 97 _n8aRalinR)
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U.S. Department of Justice
United States Parole Commission

Office of the Chairman 5550 Friendship Bivd,
Chevy Chase, Maryland 20815

August 20, 1990

Honorable Robert W. Kastenmeier

Chairman

Subcommittee on Courts, Intellectual
Property, and the Administration
of Justice

2138 Rayburn House Office Building

Washington